
 

 

                                                                                                           

  

 
IF YOU WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD: 

   
 1. Please file a speaker’s slip with the Executive Director, and upon 

  recognition by the Chair, approach the rostrum and state your name; 
  speakers are limited to 5 minutes per item. 
 
  2. If you need special assistance to participate in the meetings of the City of 

Alameda Housing Authority Board of Commissioners, please contact (510) 
747-4325 (TTY/TRS: 711) or vmondo@alamedahsg.org. Notification 48 
hours prior to the meeting will enable the City of Alameda Housing Authority 
Board of Commissioners to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility. 

 
   

 

AGENDA REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE & TIME Wednesday, August 21, 2019 – 

 

  Regular Meeting –  7:00 p.m. 
    
LOCATION Independence Plaza, 703 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, CA 
   
Welcome to the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda 
meeting.  Regular Board of Commissioners meetings are held on the third Wednesday of each 
month in the Ruth Rambeau Memorial Community Room at Independence Plaza. 
 
Public Participation 
 
Anyone wishing to address the Board on agenda items or business introduced by 
Commissioners may speak for a maximum of five minutes per agenda item when the subject 
is before the Board.  Please file a speaker’s slip with the Housing Authority Executive Director 
if you wish to address the Board of Commissioners. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
1.  ROLL CALL - Board of Commissioners  
 
2.  Public Comment (Non-Agenda) 
 
 

mailto:vmondo@alamedahsg.org


Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                             August 21, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

3.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted 

by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is 
received from the Board of Commissioners or a member of the public. 

 
3-A.  Approve Minutes of the Board of Commissioners Meeting held June 19, 2019 – Page 1  
3-B.  Accept the June and July Monthly Overview Report for Operations, H.R., and I.T. – 

Page 10 
3-C.  Accept the June and July Monthly Overview Report for the Housing Programs 

Department – Page 15 
3-D.  Accept the June and July Monthly Overview Report for the Rent Stabilization Program – 

Page 18 
3-E.  Accept the June and July Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations Department 

– Page 21 
3-F.  Accept Update on the Independence Plaza 504/ADA Upgrade – Page 29 
3-G.  Authorize the Executive Director to Enter Into the Second Amendment to the Life Skills 

Training and Education Programs, Inc. (“LifeSTEPS”) Agreement with a New Not to 
Exceed Amount of $1,160,310 – Page 31 

3-H.  Accept the June and July Monthly Overview Report for Housing & Community 
Development – Page 34 

3-I.  Accept the June and July Monthly Development Report for Everett Commons –  
  Page 37 

3-J.  Accept the June and July Monthly Development Report for Rosefield Village – Page 39 
3-K.  Accept the June and July Monthly Development Report for North Housing and Approve 

the Agency Vision for North Housing – Page 41 
3-L.  Accept the Budget Variance Report for June 30, 2019 – Page 54 
3-M.  Accept the Report for the Executive Director’s Performance Evaluation for 2018-2019 

and Goal Setting for 2019-2020 – Page 67 
 
4.  AGENDA 
 
4-A. Take Action on A Number of Board Appointments Including: a) Accept Commissioner 

Nominations and Elect a Chair and Vice Chair of the Board of Commissioners: b) 
Appoint a Boardmember to the Board of Island City Development and c) Appoint One 
Additional Member to the North Housing Adhoc Committee – Page 68 

 
4-B. Adopt the Resolution to Adopt a Revision to the Timekeeping Requirements Policy of 

the Housing Authority’s Employee Policies and Procedures Handbook – Page 70 
 
4-C. Adopt the Resolution to Revise the Employer’s Contributions for Eligible Employees’ 

Health and Dental/Vision Care, to Provide a Cost of Living Wage Increase for All 
Eligible Regular and Contract Resident Employees, and to Adopt the Corresponding 
Pay Schedule and Salary Schedule – Page 74 

 
4-D. Adopt the Resolution Certifying the Data Submitted for the Section 8 Management 

Assessment Program for FY 2018-2019 and Authorize the Executive Director to Submit 
the Data, Resolution, and Supporting Documentation to HUD – Page 86 

 



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                             August 21, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

4-E. Accept Report on Status of Littlejohn Commons Remnant Parcel, Approve Plan for 
Parcel to Revert to City of Alameda, and Authorize the Executive Director, or her 
designee, to Execute Reversion Documents – Page 98 

 
4-F. Approve a Predevelopment Loan of $92,569 from AUSD Redevelopment Funds to 

MidPen Housing Corporation For The RESHAP Project – Page 108 
 
5.  ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment) 
 
6.  COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the Commissioners) 
 
7.  ADJOURNMENT 

* * * 
 

Note 
 

    If you need special assistance to participate in the meetings of the Housing Authority of 
the City of Alameda Board of Commissioners, please contact (510) 747-4325  
(TTY/TRS: 711) or vmondo@alamedahsg.org. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting 
will enable the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda Board of Commissioners to 
make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 
 Documents related to this agenda are available for public inspection and copying at the 

Office of the Housing Authority, 701 Atlantic Avenue, during normal business hours.  
 

 Know Your RIGHTS Under The Ralph M. Brown Act: Government’s duty is to serve the 
public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public.  The Board of Commissioners 
exists to conduct the business of its constituents. Deliberations are conducted before 
the people and are open for the people’s review.  In order to assist the Housing 
Authority’s efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies, environmental 
illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, attendees at public 
meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive to various chemical 
based products. Please help the Housing Authority accommodate these individuals. 

mailto:vmondo@alamedahsg.org


 
 

                                                                                                           

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA 

HELD WEDNESDAY JUNE 19, 2019 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 
1.  ROLL CALL - Board of Commissioners  

 
Present:   Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commission Vice Chair McCahan, 
Commissioner Hadid, Commissioner Kay, Commissioner Rickard (arrived at 7:02 pm),  
and Commissioner Weinberg 
 
Absent:   Commissioner Kurrasch 

 
 
2.  Public Comment (Non-Agenda) 
 
  None. 
 
 
3.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted 
by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received 
from the Board of Commissioners or a member of the public. 

 
  Items accepted or adopted are indicated by an asterisk. 
 
  Commissioner Chair Tamaoki commented on page 7, regarding the news about Procure 

to Pay and said that this is a positive direction for AHA and thanked staff for moving this 
innovation forward. Commissioner Weinberg asked about the overall cost and Ms. 
Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director, and Ms. Tonya Schuler-Cummins, Senior 
Management Analyst, explained that Procure to Pay is an additional module which will 
only slightly increase our annual contract cost. Commissioner Kay commented that she 
has worked with similar programs in the past and found them beneficial. 

 
  Chair Tamaoki asked that a list of other yearly capital projects be added to the monthly 

Property Operations Updates memo and Ms. Lisa Caldwell, Director of Property 
Operations, agreed. 

 

Page 1

Page 1 of 110



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                                June 19, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

  Chair Tamaoki gave kudos for the successful North Housing land transfer to AHA and 
mentioned that this has been a project many years in the making. Chair Tamaoki 
commented on the newly identified section of the City code allowing for additional 
affordable units and Commissioner Weinberg asked if there is any potential downside to 
using this section of the code. Ms. Cooper explained that the City has been supportive 
of utilizing this section of the code and mentioned that staff plans to meet with the public 
due to the new number of projected homes so there are no surprises in the planning 
phase of this project. Commissioner Weinberg asked if the revised housing density 
would require extensive re-design and Ms. Kathleen Mertz, Director of Housing and 
Community Development, explained that looking at the schematics, the result of the new 
density will mainly lead to taller buildings. 

 
  Ms. Cooper announced that the monthly General Staff meeting will take place over at 

the North Housing site tomorrow, June 20th, and the members of the Board are welcome 
to attend. 

 
  Chair Tamaoki mentioned the Low and Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund Report 

and asked for clarification on whether or not these statements were positive or negative 
and if there is anything in the report that should be of concern to the Board. Ms. Mertz 
said no, and explained that this report comes before the Board yearly. The format has 
changed due to new reporting requirements. 

 
  Commissioner Weinberg commented on the 504/ADA Upgrade memo regarding the 

additional money related to the new intercom system and wanted to know why this issue 
was not discovered earlier. Ms. Cooper explained that AHA is in discussion with the 
contractor and the architect and are looking into where the responsibility falls. 

 
Vice Chair McCahan moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Weinberg 
seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously: 

 
Yes: 6 Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commission Vice Chair 

McCahan, Commissioner Hadid, Commissioner Kay, 
Commissioner Rickard, and Commissioner Weinberg 

Absent: 1 Commissioner Kurrasch 

 
*3-A.  Approve Minutes of the Board of Commissioners Meeting held May 15, 2019 
*3-B.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Operations / H.R. / I.T. 
*3-C. Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Housing Programs Department 
*3-D. Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Rent Stabilization Program 
*3-E.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations 
*3-F.  Accept Update on the Independence Plaza 504/ADA Upgrade 
*3-G. Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Housing & Community Development 
*3-H. Accept the Monthly Development Report for Everett Commons 
*3-I.  Accept the Monthly Development Report for North Housing 
*3-J.  Accept the Low and Moderate Income Housing Asset Fund Report 
*3-K.  Accept Revision to the Training and Travel Expense Procedures 
*3-L.  Accept the Budget Variance Report for March 31, 2019 

Page 2

Page 2 of 110



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                                June 19, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

*3-M. Authorize the Executive Director to Negotiate and Award a One-Year Contract for 
Auditing Services for the Year Ending June 30, 2019 to Citrin Cooperman & Company, 
LLP for an Amount Not to Exceed $45,000 and to Allow the Executive Director to 
Negotiate and Award Future Extensions of Time and Money Not to Exceed $200,000 
and Five Fiscal Years, Starting with the Audit of the 2018-19 Fiscal Year 

 
  *A revote was taken during the Oral Communications portion of the meeting 

because Commissioner Weinberg has a conflict of interest with one of the items 
and cannot participate in the Consent Calendar vote or approval process. * 

 
 
4.  AGENDA 
 
4-A.  Accept the Monthly Development Report for Rosefield Village and Approve a $2 Million 

Loan Amendment to Island City Development for Predevelopment Work at Rosefield 
Village and Authorize Executive Director to Negotiate and Execute the Loan Documents 

 
  Mr. Tony Weng, Senior Project Manager, gave a brief presentation on Rosefield Village. 

The parcel is going to be a 92-unit development. To date, the 50% documents have 
been completed, and construction will take about 2 years with an estimated completion 
date of Spring 2022. Commissioner Rickard asked if AHA is going to bid out the project 
to contractors and Ms. Cooper confirmed yes. Commissioner Rickard asked for 
clarification on the developer costs and Mr. Weng explained that the developer fees are 
limited by the funding sources. Ms. Cooper added that the fee for a developer is paid in 
different stages and if money is left in the project, this will be paid back once the cash 
flow begins. Ms. Mertz added that this project was part of the two-year Capital Plan 
approved by the Board last year. 

 
  Commissioner Rickard referred to the staff report about entitlements and confirmed that 

AHA has approvals from the City. Mr. Weng explained that AHA has the Planning 
Board’s approval, but needs to get through the building permitting process. The $2 
million will allow AHA to pay the architects to create the permitting documents.  

  
 Commissioner Kay asked if the “Other Soft Costs (Reports, Studies, Permit Fees, Etc.) 

totaling $425,000 is a common occurrence in projects such as this one and Ms. Mertz 
confirmed yes, they are common. 

 
 Chair Tamaoki asked for a cost estimate per unit for the 12 rehab units and Mr. Weng 

stated that as of now, the preliminary hard cost is about $50,000 per unit for the rehab 
work. Ms. Cooper added that other than new paint, the unit interiors have not been 
updated and work is needed to make all of the rehabbed units equitable to the new 
units. Commissioner Kay asked if there will be ADA units and Mr. Weng confirmed that 
all the new construction units will be 100% universally designed and can be adapted to 
be compliant with ADA requirements. Ms. Mertz added that 25 of the new units will be 
fully accessible units and the remaining units will be ADA adaptable should an ADA unit 
be needed in the future. 

 

Page 3

Page 3 of 110



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                                June 19, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

 Chair Tamaoki asked how the $13.8 million acquisition cost referenced in the 
presentation was determined and Mr. Weng explained that it was determined by the 
appraisal. Ms. Mertz added that AHA will remain the land owner of Rosefield Village, but 
the improvements will be owned by the partnership. There was a brief discussion 
around project costs and repayment of debt funds and Ms. Mertz explained that there 
will be several funding partners who will also be receiving residual payments once the 
project is complete. Ms. Cooper added that money is received based on the percentage 
contributed. 

  
 Commissioner Kay asked if tenants currently in the process of relocation get priority to 

move back into Rosefield Village once the project is complete and Ms. Cooper 
explained that it depends. The tenant must first qualify, the property is moving from a 
Section 8 only to a tax credit requirement, and anyone will be able to apply. Only past 
tenants relocated outside Alameda will get a preference point in the lottery. When 
Rosefield is ready to be leased-up, the same AHA lease-up process will apply and 
everyone that applies will go through a lottery. 

 
Commissioner Weinberg moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Kay seconded 
the motion. The motion passed unanimously: 

 
Yes: 6 Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commission Vice Chair 

McCahan, Commissioner Hadid, Commissioner Kay, 
Commissioner Rickard, and Commissioner Weinberg 

Absent: 1 Commissioner Kurrasch 

 
 
4-B. Adopt the Resolution to Approve the Housing Authority’s One Year Budget for Fiscal 

Year July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 and the Revised Schedule of Authorized Positions 
  
 Ms. Cooper gave a presentation of the AHA one-year budget and thanked staff for 

helping with the budgeting process. Commissioner Rickard asked how increasing AHA 
rent helps the agency and Ms. Cooper explained that on a voucher unit, if the household 
is a family of four and pays $2,000 for a family unit, but the payment standard allows for 
a higher monthly rent, AHA can increase the contract rent without impacting the family 
and help increase the HAP paid out under the voucher program. 

 
 Chair Tamaoki asked what percentage of the Admin Fee is covered by HUD versus 

what is covered by other departments.  Ms. Cooper explained that last year the costs 
covered by AHA was about $300,000, though part of this was because AHA had several 
vacant positions and this amount will increase next year because AHA has hired several 
new staff members. For the Admin Fee, 100% funding is about right to cover the costs 
of the program, but it also depends on how the Housing Authority runs their program, 
and AHA continues to work towards improving efficiency. However, AHA does not 
receive 100% funding. Ms. Cooper also explained that AHA does not get to provide 
admin staffing cost input specific to the AHA program or particular metropolitan area, 
but that HUD makes the determination based off their own formula and calculations. The 
total admin fee reimbursement currently is roughly about 70% of the cost. There was a 

Page 4

Page 4 of 110



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                                June 19, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

brief conversation about the change in reimbursement each year and Ms. Cooper 
explained that AHA wants to continue to provide customer service above the expected 
minimum service and there is a balance that needs to happen between staffing and 
actual cost.  

  
 Commissioner Rickard asked why the developer fees are not included in the budget and 

Ms. Cooper explained that a small amount is incorporated, but this budget is only for 
one fiscal year and the developer fees will come towards the back end of the project. 
Ms. Mertz added that the last two projects had a joint agreement with AHA and ICD 
where ICD receives most of the developer fee and AHA receives 10%. Ms. Cooper 
explained that over time the developer fee will allow ICD to repay AHA, but until that 
stage, 90% will stay with ICD and 10% will go to AHA. 

 
 Vice Chair McCahan expressed one concern with regards to having enough staff 

members for the two major development projects in the pipeline and whether there is a 
plan to add staff support on these projects. Ms. Cooper explained that AHA is going to 
self-develop Rosefield and most likely the 90 units of supportive housing at the North 
Housing site. For other projects going forward, AHA may start to look into having 
consultants help staff or put out a RFP to a non-profit partner. Regardless, AHA will 
continue to look at staff workload and balance of providing AHA staff with interesting 
work. Commissioner Weinberg asked if AHA has contracts with consultants that can be 
called upon and Ms. Cooper said yes and explained that a full range of consultants are 
available should the need arise.  

 
Commissioner Kay asked if programs like Rent Café will make a difference in overall 
staffing levels and Ms. Cooper explained that most Rent Café efficiencies improve data 
quality since the tenant will be inputting their own information, but there is still plenty of 
other work for staff to complete. In the future, this additional time could potentially be 
used to provide more face-to-face interaction with participants and AHA continues to 
strive to give a high level of service. 

 
Vice Chair McCahan moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Kay seconded the 
motion. A roll call vote was taken and all were in favor of adopting the resolution: 

 
Yes: 6 Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commission Vice Chair 

McCahan, Commissioner Hadid, Commissioner Kay, 
Commissioner Rickard, and Commissioner Weinberg 

Absent: 1 Commissioner Kurrasch 

 
 
4-C. Accept a Presentation and Discussion on AHA’s Obligation and Options to Prefund 

Pension Liabilities and Provide Direction to Staff on Pre-funding of the Pension Liability. 
Board to Take the Following Actions: (a) Approve a Payment of Up to $538,000 to 
CalPERS by June 30, 2019 for the FY 2018-19 Required Payment; (b) Authorize the 
Executive Director or Designee to Establish a 115 Trust and to Prefund that Account in 
an Amount Up to a Maximum of $2,200,000 (the Total Unfunded Liability on a Projected 
Basis) (c) Approve the Executive Director to Make 1/12 of Those Payments in Equal 

Page 5

Page 5 of 110



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                                June 19, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

Amounts to Allow for Dollar Cost Averaging (c) provide direction to staff on the selection 
of an amortization period of 10 years or 15 years, an investment strategy and an target 
ROR (4 or 5%) (d) Amend the FY 2019-20 Budget to Include Any Amounts Approved for 
the Establishment of the Trust (e) Select a 115 Trust from PARS or CalPERS and the 
Investment Strategy as Conservative/ Moderately Conservative or Its Equivalent. 

 
 Ms. Cooper explained that this was brought before the Board in January and due to the 

number of questions, staff is back with more information. The presentation began on 
slide 20 (previous slides were covered in January) and Ms. Cooper explained the flow of 
the presentation. Commissioner Weinberg asked who created the recommendations 
and Ms. Cooper explained how, after several meetings and with guidance from Nicolay 
Consulting, they arrived at the options presented before the Board. Ms. Cooper then 
explained the different scenarios and stated that for the timing of prefunding, there are 
basically two options; to open a PARS account by June 30, 2019 or not to open a PARS 
account but instead a CEPPT after July 1, 2019. 

 
Mr. Eddie Lee, Senior Actuary with Nicolay, added that the options before the Board are 
for discussion, and if more time is needed further information can be presented as there 
is not a definitive legal deadline to AHA’s pension liability. Ms. Cooper explained that the 
investment strategy should remain with the Board and if the Board of Commissioners is 
not ready to move forward, then staff can come back with more information and another 
presentation at a future meeting.   

 
Mr. Lee began his presentation by briefly explaining AHA’s liability before explaining the 
advantages and disadvantages of prefunding and the options before the Board. Chair 
Tamaoki referred to the packet mentioning four prefunding options: the AHA 115 Trust, 
the California’s Pension Prefunding Trust, PARS, and no Trust and asked if the 
disadvantages described on page 23 of the presentation apply to the AHA 115 Trust 
and Mr. Lee explained that the listed disadvantages apply to all trust options. There was 
then a discussion about what it means to setup a 115 Trust, market volatility and risk.  

 
 Ms. Cooper explained that there are actual projected contributions and CalPERS uses a 

method which basically discounts the first couple of years to get organizations to begin 
the process, but if an organization pays less money upfront, then the unfunded liability 
goes up and more money is required down the road. 

 
 Commissioner Rickard referred to slide 26 and said that the information presented is 

assuming that staff is continuing to turn over and Ms. Cooper explained that the 
projections are based on current hired staff and liabilities incurred to date.  
Commissioner Rickard then asked how the process works for new staff and Ms. Cooper 
explained that under the new model, AHA contributes less because the new employee 
contributes more, but there is still an increase in liability. Commissioner Rickard asked 
about the future liability and it was explained that while the State of California has 
reduced the cost, the overall liability is climbing over time and Mr. Lee said that it will 
take 30 years to fund the current unfunded liability. 

 
 Ms. Cooper explained that moving forward with funding the unfunded liability will allow 

AHA to get ahead of the problem as opposed to pushing the issue down the road. 

Page 6

Page 6 of 110



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                                June 19, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

Commissioner Hadid asked if AHA could use this money if HUD closes and Ms. Cooper 
explained that this cannot be used towards a closure as it is set aside for pension 
liabilities.  Commissioner Hadid then asked if contributing money now would jeopardize 
AHA if HUD closes again and Ms. Cooper explained that with the small amount before 
the Board, AHA would not be jeopardized. 

 
 Commissioner Weinberg asked how the prefunding amount was determined and Ms. 

Cooper explained that the total gap amount is $2.2 million and the consultants were 
asked to provide a reasonable amount that could be paid now.  Ms. Cooper then 
referred everyone to page 13 of the presentation and Mr. Lee explained that the amount 
was determined by annual run rate that would make AHA stable; if less is put in now, 
there will be a greater cost in the future. The “sweet spot” is between 10-15 years so the 
goal was to find a reasonable amount for an investment return rate.  

 
 Ms. Cooper explained the three types of payments and there was a discussion about 

the difference between CERBT and PARS. The Board then discussed the various 
options and payment amounts that could be used.  Ms. Cooper explained that as long 
as there is money in the trust that can make the minimum CalPERS payment, then the 
yearly 115 contributions can fluctuate as this is basically a plan for the future.  Vice 
Chair McCahan stated his agreement with Scenario A because AHA currently has the 
money, and making an investment such as this tells employees that AHA and the Board 
want to fully fund their pension, AHA will have a leg up over other organizations down 
the road, and this liability is not something that should be ignored. 

 
 Commissioner Rickard questioned why the million dollars is not put directly into 

CalPERS and Ms. Cooper explained that AHA did this in the past, but it minimally 
moves the liability down since the payment is spread out. The consultant was asked to 
verify this. There was then a discussion about bifurcating and paying directly into 
CalPERS vs. opening a 115 Trust.  

 
 Vice Chair McCahan asked how this cost would be shown on the books going forward 

and Ms. Cooper explained that it will be listed as a separately listed component in the 
annual audit. Ms. Cooper then explained that staff needs approval to pay by June 30, 
2019 and that the expected amount is $430,000. There was discussion about changing 
the recommendation to directing staff to pay bills and return to the Board with two 
scenarios: (1) $1 million directly into CalPERS with an answer on amortization; and (2) 
$1 million in the 115 Trust for 10 years with a 4% ROR.   

 
Commissioner Weinberg moved to approve a payment of up to $538,000 to CalPERS 
by June 30, 2019 for the FY 2018-19 required payment and accept the new 
recommendation to return to the Board with the two $1 million scenarios and Vice Chair 
McCahan seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously: 

 
Yes: 6 Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commission Vice Chair 

McCahan, Commissioner Hadid, Commissioner Kay, 
Commissioner Rickard, and Commissioner Weinberg 

Absent: 1 Commissioner Kurrasch 

Page 7

Page 7 of 110



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                                June 19, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

 
4-D. Approve a Resolution to Allow the Executive Director to Open New Collateralized Bank 

Accounts with Citibank for The John Stewart Managed Properties 
 
 Ms. Cooper explained that four bank accounts were opened under our Property 

Management agreement by the John Stewart Company (JSCO) for Rosefield and Eagle 
Villages and the audit process requires collateralization documentation. Ms. Lisa 
Caldwell, Director of Property Operations, worked with JSCO to remove the risk on 
these accounts and if AHA is the owner of the bank accounts while JSCO has signing 
authority, collateralization can take place. This is coming before the Board as an action 
item because Citibank needs a resolution to proceed.  

 
Chair Tamaoki commented that the Bank of Marin sent him an email asking if the funds 
could be put in their bank and asked about the process for determining a bank. Ms. 
Cooper explained that she has responded to the Bank of Marin inquiry, and explained 
that AHA has generally used US Bank for the past several years. For AHA’s main 
banking relationship, switching banks can have equipment ramifications such as the 
scanners used at the properties to deposit checks. AHA does utilize other banks as well. 
Some of the tax credit development lenders require that AHA bank with them, at least 
for the initial period. In this instance, AHA typically lets the project management 
company decide the bank, but the bank JSCO was with could not collateralize without 
the accounts being in the owner’s name.   

 
 Chair Tamaoki asked if using Citibank instead of US Bank caused issues for AHA and 

Ms. Cooper explained that since JSCO will be reconciling the bank accounts, there 
should not be a problem. Ms. Caldwell added that all of JSCO’s bank accounts are with 
Citibank. Ms. Cooper explained that if AHA wanted to determine the banks used by the 
property managers, it could be put into the next Property Management RFP.  

 
Commissioner Hadid moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Weinberg 
seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken and all were in favor of adopting the 
resolution: 

 
Yes: 6 Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commission Vice Chair 

McCahan, Commissioner Hadid, Commissioner Kay, 
Commissioner Rickard, and Commissioner Weinberg 

Absent: 1 Commissioner Kurrasch 

 
 
5.  ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment) 
 
  Ms. Cooper asked that the Consent Calendar approval be revisited and a new vote 

taken because Commissioner Weinberg has a conflict of interest with one of the items 
and cannot participate in the approval. 

 
Commissioner Hadid moved to re-accept the motion and Commissioner Kay seconded 
the motion. The motion passed unanimously: 

Page 8

Page 8 of 110



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                                June 19, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

 
Yes: 5 Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commission Vice Chair 

McCahan, Commissioner Hadid, Commissioner Kay, 
Commissioner Rickard 

Abstained: 1 Commissioner Weinberg 

Absent: 1 Commissioner Kurrasch 

  
 
6.  COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the Commissioners) 
 
  None. 
 
 
7.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
  There being no further business, Chair Tamaoki adjourned the meeting at 9:49 p.m. 
 
 
 
  _____________________     _____________________ 
  Vanessa M. Cooper      Kenji Tamaoki, Chair 
  Executive Director/Secretary    Board of Commissioners 
 

Page 9

Page 9 of 110



Page 10

Page 10 of 110



Page 11

Page 11 of 110



Page 12

Page 12 of 110



Page 13

Page 13 of 110



Page 14

Page 14 of 110



Page 15

Page 15 of 110



Page 16

Page 16 of 110



Page 17

Page 17 of 110



Page 18

Page 18 of 110



Page 19

Page 19 of 110



Page 20

Page 20 of 110



Page 21

Page 21 of 110



Page 22

Page 22 of 110



Page 23

Page 23 of 110



Page 24

Page 24 of 110



Page 25

Page 25 of 110



Page 26

Page 26 of 110



Page 27

Page 27 of 110



Pr
op

er
ty

Pr
oj
ec
t

O
rig

in
al
 C
on

tr
ac
t 

or
 B
ud

ge
t A

m
ou

nt

Ap
pr
ov

ed
 

Ch
an

ge
 

O
rd
er
s

Cu
rr
en

t o
r 

Re
vi
se
d 
Bu

dg
et
 

Am
ou

nt

O
rig

in
al
 

Su
bs
ta
nt
ia
l 

Co
m
pl
et
io
n

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 o
r 

Ac
tu
al
 S
ub

st
an

tia
l 

Co
m
pl
et
io
n

St
at
us

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce
 P
la
za

AD
A 
Pr
oj
ec
t (
fin

al
 c
os
ts
 o
nl
y)

16
0,
00

0
0

16
0,
00

0
8/
2/
20

19
9/
12

/2
01

9
Se
e 
St
af
f R

ep
or
t

An
ne

 B
 D
ia
m
on

d 
&
 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce
 P
la
za

Ba
lc
on

y 
As
se
ss
m
en

t
20

0,
00

0
0

20
0,
00

0
11

/1
/2
01

9
11

/1
/2
01

9
So

lic
iti
ng

 e
st
im

at
es
, o

ne
 p
ro
po

sa
l s
ec
ur
ed

, t
w
o 
pe

nd
in
g

Sh
er
m
an

 S
tr
ee

t
Ro

of
in
g

14
5,
00

0
0

14
5,
00

0
10

/1
8/
20

19
10

/1
8/
20

19
Ve

nd
or
 se

le
ct
ed

, a
gr
ee

m
en

t e
xe
cu
te
d.
 W

or
k 
sc
he

du
le
d 
to
 

be
gi
n 
Se
pt
 2
01

9

Sh
em

an
 S
tr
ee

t
Pl
um

bi
ng

25
,0
00

0
25

,0
00

11
/1
/2
01

9
11

/1
/2
01

9
Co

or
di
na

tin
g 
w
ith

 p
lu
m
bi
ng

 se
rv
ic
es
 to

 id
en

tif
y 
iss

ue
 a
nd

 
de

fin
e 
sc
op

e

Es
pe

ra
nz
a

Si
de

w
al
ks
, D

ec
ks
 &
 M

isc
 S
ite

 W
or
k 

(le
nd

er
 re

qu
ire

d)
10

0,
00

0
‐

10
0,
00

0
1/
31

/2
02

0
1/
31

/2
02

0
Re

vi
ew

in
g 
le
nd

er
 re

po
rt
 to

 id
en

tif
y 
an

d 
de

fin
e 
sc
op

e

Li
nc
ol
n 
Ho

us
e

Fi
re
 D
am

ag
e

10
1,
00

0
‐

10
1,
00

0
11

/2
6/
20

19
11

/2
6/
20

19
Ar
ch
ite

ct
ur
al
 d
ra
w
in
gs
 c
om

pl
et
e,
 st
af
f c
ur
re
nt
ly
 se

cu
rin

g 
pe

rm
it,
 a
nd

 p
re
pa

rin
g 
bi
d 
pa

ck
ag
e

Ha
ig
ht
 A
ve
nu

e
Re

no
va
tio

n 
Pr
oj
ec
t (
pe

nd
in
g 

ac
qu

isi
tio

n)
50

0,
00

0
‐

50
0,
00

0
‐

‐
N
o 
up

da
te
, p

ro
je
ct
 p
en

di
ng

 a
cq
ui
sit
io
n

Ro
se
fie

ld
 V
ill
ag
e

Re
de

ve
lo
pm

en
t P

ro
je
ct

7,
00

0,
00

0
‐

7,
00

0,
00

0
20

20
20

20
Se
e 
HC

D 
Re

po
rt

N
or
th
 H
ou

sin
g

De
m
o/
N
ew

 C
on

st
ru
ct
io
n

3,
00

0,
00

0
‐

3,
00

0,
00

0
20

24
20

24
Se
e 
HC

D 
Re

po
rt

Pr
op

er
ty

Pr
oj
ec
t

O
rig

in
al
 C
on

tr
ac
t 

or
 B
ud

ge
t A

m
ou

nt

Ap
pr
ov

ed
 

Ch
an

ge
 

O
rd
er
s

Cu
rr
en

t o
r 

Re
vi
se
d 
Bu

dg
et
 

Am
ou

nt

O
rig

in
al
 

Su
bs
ta
nt
ia
l 

Co
m
pl
et
io
n

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 o
r 

Ac
tu
al
 S
ub

st
an

tia
l 

Co
m
pl
et
io
n

St
at
us

An
ne

 B
 D
ia
m
on

d 
&
 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce
 P
la
za

Ba
lc
on

y 
As
se
ss
m
en

t
20

0,
00

0
0

20
0,
00

0
11

/1
/2
01

9
11

/1
/2
01

9
M
ov

ed
 to

 2
01

9/
20

 C
IP
 sc

he
du

le
 ‐ 
se
e 
ab

ov
e

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce
 P
la
za

AD
A 
U
pg

ra
de

 P
ro
je
ct

3,
50

0,
00

0
35

2,
87

5,
15

2
8/
2/
20

19
7/
3/
20

19
Ba

se
 p
ro
je
ct
 c
om

pl
et
e.
 A
DA

 d
oo

rs
 ro

lle
d 
in
to
 2
01

9/
20

 C
IP
 

sc
he

du
le
 ‐ 
se
e 
st
af
f r
ep

or
t

Sh
em

an
 S
tr
ee

t
Ro

of
in
g,
 P
av
in
g 
&
 D
ra
in
ag
e

20
0,
00

0
0

20
0,
00

0
10

/1
8/
20

19
10

/1
8/
20

19
Ro

of
in
g 
bi
ds
 se

cu
re
d,
 c
on

st
ru
ct
io
n 
m
ov

ed
 to

 2
01

9/
20

 C
IP
 

sc
he

du
le
 ‐ 
se
e 
ab

ov
e

FY
 2
01

8‐
19

 C
ap

ita
l P
ro
je
ct
s U

pd
at
e

At
ta
ch
m
en

t 1

FY
 2
01

9‐
20

 C
ap

ita
l P
ro
je
ct
s U

pd
at
e

Page 28

Page 28 of 110



Page 29

Page 29 of 110



Page 30

Page 30 of 110



Page 31

Page 31 of 110



Page 32

Page 32 of 110



AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT 
  
 This Amendment of the Agreement, entered into this 22nd day of August, 2019, by and 
between the HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA and its affiliates, a public 
body corporate and politic (hereinafter referred to as "AHA") and Life Skills Training and 
Education Programs, Inc. (“LifeSTEPS”). (a California 501c3 Corporation) whose address is 
4041 Bridge Street Fair Oaks, CA 95628, (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor") is made with 
reference to the following: 
 

RECITALS: 
 
A. On May 1, 2016, an agreement was entered into by and between AHA and 

Contractor (hereinafter "Agreement"). The not to exceed amount was $435,000 and the end date 
was April 30, 2019.  

 
B.  On August 22, 2019, this agreement was modified to incorporate two (2) additional 

years of service retroactive to May 1, 2019. The not to exceed amount was extended to 
$1,310,000 and the end date was April 30, 2021. 
 

C.  AHA and Contractor desire to modify the Agreement on the terms and conditions 
set forth herein. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed by and between and undersigned parties as follows: 
 

1. Paragraph 1 of the Agreement is modified to read as follows: 
 
The Contractor shall commence on May 1, 2016 and shall terminate on April 30, 2021. 
 
2.  Paragraph 3 of the Agreement is modified to read as follows: 
 
Contractor shall be compensated for services performed pursuant to this Agreement not to 

exceed $1,160,310 for the 5 year term as set forth in Proposal Form Exhibit "A". 
 
3. Except as expressly modified herein, all other terms and covenants set forth in the 

Agreement shall remain the same and shall be in full force and effect.  
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this modification of the Agreement to 
be executed on the day and year first above written. 
 
 
Life Skills Training and Education Programs, Inc. 
(“LifeSTEPS”) 

 HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY 
OF ALAMEDA 

 
 

  
 
 

Beth Southorn 
Executive Director, LifeSTEPS 

 Vanessa M. Cooper 
Executive Director 

 

Page 33

Page 33 of 110



Page 34

Page 34 of 110



Page 35

Page 35 of 110



Page 36

Page 36 of 110



 

                                                                                                           

 
To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Richard Yoshida, Project Manager 
 
Date: August 21, 2019 
 
Re: Accept the June and July Monthly Development Report for Everett 

Commons 

 
BACKGROUND 

 
The Housing and Community Development Department provides monthly reports on 
projects under construction where either AHA or Island City Development (ICD) is 
acting as developer and provides performance guarantees.   
 
The Everett Commons project includes the new construction of 20 units located at 2437 
Eagle Ave. ICD is the developer. Construction funds were secured at the loan closing 
on June 29, 2017. Construction of the project started on July 7, 2017. The project 
received a Final Certificate of Occupancy on December 20, 2018 and was fully leased 
by December 31, 2018. A Grand Opening Celebration was held on March 26, 2019.  
 
This will be the final HCD report on this project. 
 
Bedroom Size 1 2 3 4 Total 

# Units 4 11 5 0 20 

 
Total Development Budget: $18.8 Million 
Financing Sources: Low-Income Housing Tax Credits, HOME funds, AHA Loan, bank 
loan, Alameda County A1 Bonds, Project Based Vouchers 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Construction is complete and all contractor costs have been paid. The property is fully 
leased up. The final cost certification has been completed. The Alameda County A1 
Bond loan funded (net of retention) along with the investor’s capital contributions to pay 
down the construction loan. Developer Fees of $432,322 were paid. Stabilization was 
satisfied and the project converted to permanent financing on July 17, 2019. The 
operation of the property is being managed by The John Stewart Company. 

Page 37

Page 37 of 110



Page 38

Page 38 of 110



Page 39

Page 39 of 110



Page 40

Page 40 of 110



Page 41

Page 41 of 110



Page 42

Page 42 of 110



Page 43

Page 43 of 110



I NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019

NORTH HOUSING 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN

PREPARED FOR

The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda

PARTNERS

Alameda Point Collaborative
Building Futures

CONSULTANT TEAM

Carlson, Barbee and Gibson (CBG)
Gates + Associates
Structure
Urban Design Associates

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Acknowledgments

Introduction 1
Site Context 2
Conceptual Site Plan 3
Local Connections 4
Street Connections 5
Street Cross Sections — Existing 6
Street Cross Sections —  
Previously Approved 7
Street Cross Sections —  
Proposed Local Streets 8
Open Space Plan 9
Pedestrian and Bicycle Connections 10
Public Transit Connections 11

Infrastructure 12
Conceptual Site Plan & Building Siting 13
Conceptual Plot Plan 14
Subarea Height Limits, Setback & Guidelines 15
Summary of Housing Types 16
Automobile Parking 17
Conceptual Architectural Styles 18
Preliminary Development Schedule 19

1 NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019

Introduction

North Housing is a plan for 12.07 acres that 
transforms vacant former Coast Guard housing 
into an extension of a vibrant mixed-income 
residential neighborhood. As a residential 
community, the site will mix housing and 
supportive services for formerly homeless, 
senior, and family households while providing 
and connecting to key amenities in the City of 
Alameda. This Development Plan provides land 
use, circulation, and infrastructure consistent 
with the City of Alameda’s General Plan and 
defines open space, public access, and design 
standards for the redevelopment of the North 
Housing parcel.

Objectives
 • Create walkable blocks mixed with circu-

lation and access for pedestrians, bicycles, 
and motor vehicles.

 • Connect to parks and open space.

 • Integrate with the fabric of the existing 
neighborhoods.

 • Increase quality, diverse affordable hous-
ing and supportive service spaces for the 
Alameda Community.

The North Housing 

Site The site is adjacent 
to the Alameda Landing 
development, with good 
proximity to the Main Street 
Ferry Terminal, the Bay Trail, 
retail, and more.

Singleton Avenue

Be
tt

e 
St

re
et

Mosley Avenue

La
ke

hu
rs

t D
riv

e

EVA

Service

Service

Service

Service

Service

Page 44

Page 44 of 110



2 NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019

Site Context

Estuary Park

Coast Guard 

Park Carmel 

Partners

Habitat 

Parcel

Alameda 

Main St Ferry 

Terminal

Oakland Inner Harbor

Existing Coast 

Guard Housing

College of 

Alameda

Alameda Unified School 

District

Alameda 

Landing

Alameda 

Landing Retail

Singleton Avenue

Willie Stargell Avenue

Mosley Avenue

Marina Village Parkway

M
ain Street

Be
tt

e 
St

re
et

5t
h 

St
re

et

W
eb

st
er

 S
tr

ee
t

W
eb

st
er

 S
tr

ee
t T

ub
e

NORTH HOUSING

The North Housing site is located on the 
western end of Alameda Island in the San 
Francisco Bay. This plan is designed to create 
new mixed income housing opportunities that 
make sense in the context of the surrounding 
neighborhood. North Housing will provide 
connectivity to the surrounding developments 
and further knit together the cohesiveness of 
the west end of the island.

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 3 

Conceptual Site Plan

Singleton Avenue

Mosley Avenue

Be
tt

e 
St

re
et

La
ke

hu
rs

t D
riv

e

EVA

EVA

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

Units Square Footage Parking Estimated Open Space

Block Supportive 
Housing

Family Senior Management/ 
Community Space

Off-Street Public Semi-Public

A 90 — 51 2,900 53 0.21 ac 0.05 ac

B — — 54 1,340 29 0.02 ac

C — 85 141 7,025 141 0.27 ac 0.17 ac

D — 159 — 4,770 131 0.10 ac 0.40 ac

Subtotal 90 244 246 354 0.58 ac 0.64 ac

Total 580 Units 16,035 SF 354 Spaces 1.22 ac

PSH Parking Requirement: 0.25 total off-street spaces
Family Parking Requirement: Minimum 0.8 space/unit off-street spaces
Senior Parking Requirement: 0.5 space/unit off-street spaces
Above Moderate Housing: 1 space/unit off-street spaces

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM 

Supportive Housing Family Senior

Studio, 1 bath/unit 45 — —

1 Bedroom, 1 bath/unit 44 90 (37%) 244 (99%)

2 Bedroom, 1 bath/unit 1 91 (37%) 2 (1%)

3 Bedroom, 1.5 bath/unit — 63 (26%) —

Total Units 90 244 246

Service

Service

Service

Service

Service

Page 45

Page 45 of 110



LOCAL CONNECTIONS

Bay
 Tra

il

Estuary Park

Coast Guard Park

AUSD Alameda 

Landing

Alameda 

Landing Retail

College of 

Alameda

4 min walk to Bay Trail

2 min walkto Retail

Habitat Parcel

Existing  

Coast Guard  

Housing

Carmel Partners

Alameda Main St 

Ferry Terminal

10 min walk 
to Ferry Terminal

Local Connections

Mosley Ave

Willie Stargell Ave

5th St

Bette
 St

Main St

Mitchell Ave

Singleton Ave

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 4 

EXISTING COMMUNITY STREETS

EXISTING LOCAL STREETS

PROPOSED COMMUNITY STREETS

PROPOSED LOCAL STREETS

Habitat Parcel

AUSD

Estuary Park

Coast Guard 

Park

Mosley Ave

Singleton Ave

Bet
te

 St

La
ke

hu
rs

t D
riv

e

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 5 

Street Connections

AUTOMOBILE ACCESS

North Housing is bounded to the north by 
the extension of Mosley Avenue. Singleton 
Avenue runs through the southern third of 
the site, and Bette Street provides the eastern 
boundary. Mosley and Singleton are described 
as community streets as they are more highly 
utilized streets that tie into the greater fabric 
of Alameda, while Bette is characterized as a 
local street, primarily serving the households 
of Alameda Landing.

The plan would introduce two new local 
streets to increase site connectivity and create 
a more walkable block structure that aligns 
with the grid city character of Alameda. The 
north/south local street connects Singleton 
and Mosley while providing a spine down the 
center of the site.

Lakehurst is an existing street from the 
former Coast Guard housing that would 
be rebuilt and connected to an east/west 
local street. This would allow for the exist-
ing townhouses to continue to face a street 
environment, while also creating four distinct 
development blocks that can be easily phased 
for building projects.

There was an emphasis in the planning pro-
cess to create minimal curb cuts along Bette 
street in order to keep from disturbing the 
trail that runs along that street.

EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS (EVA)

The four development blocks are also de-
signed for 150-feet hose pull and addition-
al emergency vehicle access. The internal 
network of roadways and easements allows 
for access to all building sites. This includes a 
shared paseo along the northeast edge of the 
Housing Authority site, along its border with 
the future Habitat for Humanity site, which 
provides EVA access to both sites to allow for 
development along this border.

Page 46

Page 46 of 110



A

R.O.W.

ParkingAlameda Housing 

Authority Site

Section A  —Existing Bette Street Section

Bette Street cross-section is provided to show 
context only. No changes to Bette Street are 
proposed.

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 6 

Street Cross Sections — Existing

B

C

R.O.W.R.O.W.

Parking Parking Parking Parking Estuary Park

Section B  — Singleton Avenue Section C  — Mosley Avenue

Street sections for Singleton Avenue and 
Mosley Avenue through and around the North 
Housing site have previously been approved 
by the City of Alameda, in coordination with 
Carmel Partners’ work to build these streets. 
The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda 
presents these street sections only to show 
what will be constructed.

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 7 

Street Cross Sections —  

Previously Approved

Page 47

Page 47 of 110



D

E

R.O.W. R.O.W.

ParkingParking Parking Existing 

Townhouses

Section D  — Local Street 1 Section E  — Local Street 2

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 8 

Street Cross Sections —  

Proposed Local Streets

The North Housing 

Site The site is adjacent 
to the Alameda Landing 
development, with good 
proximity to the Main Street 
Ferry Terminal, the Bay Trail, 
retail, and more.

Singleton Avenue

Be
tt

e 
St

re
et

Mosley Avenue

La
ke

hu
rs

t D
riv

e

EVA

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 9 

Open Space Plan

The landscape will be compliant with Bay 
Friendly Landscape Guidelines and provide 
places for the community to enjoy the out-
doors. Planting will provide clues to way-find-
ing and views will be framed by tree and 
plant locations. Various types and scales of 
gathering spaces will be designed throughout 
the project to encourage a mixture of outdoor 
activities.

Page 48

Page 48 of 110



EXISTING CLASS I BIKEWAY

EXISTING CLASS II BIKEWAY

PROPOSED SIDEWALKS

PROPOSED CLASS II BIKEWAY

EXISTING SIDEWALKS

Habitat Parcel

AUSD

Estuary Park

Coast Guard 

Park

Mosley Ave

Singleton Ave

Bet
te

 St

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 10 

Pedestrian and Bicycle Connections

EXISTING BUS LINE (96)

EXISTING ALAMEDA LANDING SHUTTLE LINE

EXISTING PEDESTRIAN CONNECTION

EXISTING BUS STOP

EXISTING ALAMEDA LANDING SHUTTLE STOP

College of 

Alameda

Alameda Main St 

Ferry Terminal

Mosley Ave

Singleton Ave

Willie Stargell Ave

Willie Stargell Ave

W Midway Ave

Bette
 St

Main St
Mitchell Ave

5th St

EXISTING FERRY TERMINAL

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 11 

Public Transit Connections

Page 49

Page 49 of 110



These proposed infrastructure plans show the 
conceptual storm drain, water, and sanitary 
sewer to be provided to the North Housing 
site.

The conceptual storm drain system includes a 
large existing outlet to the estuary along the 
proposed local street that is running north to 
south.

Potable water lines will not utilize the existing 
building’s military water lines. Lines will tie 
into Mosley at the two street connections to 
the north and Singleton at the street intersec-
tion for both north and south main lines into 
the site. One line also ties into Bette Street at 
the southernmost drive aisle for the project.

PG&E and AMP, respectively, have confirmed 
capacity of both gas and electric systems to 
the site. Service to new buildings will be ob-
tained at time of development.

UTILITY CONCEPT

LEGEND:

                  Existing Sanitary Sewer Line

                  Proposed Sanitary Sewer Line

ALAMEDA HOUSING AUTHORITY -
NORTH HOUSING SITE

CONCEPTUAL SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM

HABITAT FOR
HUMANITY

Mosley Avenue

Singleton Avenue

La
ke

hu
rs

t 
D

ri
ve

12.07 AC

B
et

te
 S

tr
ee

t

Proposed Pump Station
(Admiral's Cove)

E
x 

15
" 

S
S

To Ex 24" SS

LEGEND:

                  Existing Storm Drain Line

                  Proposed Storm Drain Line

ALAMEDA HOUSING AUTHORITY - 
NORTH HOUSING SITE

CONCEPTUAL STORM DRAIN SYSTEM

UTILITY CONCEPT
To Existing
Outfall to Estuary

HABITAT FOR
HUMANITY

12.07 AC

Singleton Avenue

B
et

te
 S

tr
ee

t

La
ke

hu
rs

t 
D

ri
ve

UTILITY CONCEPT

HABITAT FOR
HUMANITY

Mosley Avenue

Singleton Avenue

La
ke

hu
rs

t 
D

ri
ve

12.07 AC

B
et

te
 S

tr
ee

t

LEGEND:

                  Existing Water Line

                  Existing Water Line 
(to be installed by Admiral's Cove)

                  Proposed Water Line

ALAMEDA HOUSING AUTHORITY - 
NORTH HOUSING SITE
CONCEPTUAL WATER SYSTEM

ALAMEDA HOUSING AUTHORITY - 
NORTH HOUSING SITE

CONCEPTUAL WATER SYSTEM

Infrastructure

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 12 

Conceptual Storm Drain System

Conceptual Sanitary Sewer System

Conceptual Water SystemEXISTING STORM DRAIN LINE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE

PROPOSED STORM DRAIN LINE

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER LINE

EXISTING WATER LINE

EXISTING WATER LINE
(TO BE INSTALLED BY ADMIRAL’S COVE)

PROPOSED WATER LINE

Block Diagram

A

B
C

D

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 13 

Conceptual Site Plan & Building Siting

THE PLAN FOR NORTH HOUSING

The plan for North Housing is designed to 
increase connectivity throughout the site 
while allowing for developable parcels for 
high quality affordable housing. This plan 
illustrates how the concepts and goals of the 
development plan come together.

The placement of buildings, streets and open 
space create a neighborly environment to 
integrate the North Housing site with the sur-
rounding community. The scale of the build-
ings relate to each other and their neighbors 
while utilizing the site to provide an impactful 
amount of necessary affordable housing.

The North Housing 

Site The site is adjacent 
to the Alameda Landing 
development, with good 
proximity to the Main Street 
Ferry Terminal, the Bay Trail, 
retail, and more.

Singleton Avenue

Be
tt

e 
St

re
et

Service

Service

Service

Mosley Avenue

La
ke

hu
rs

t D
riv

e

EVA

Service

Service

Page 50

Page 50 of 110



NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 14 

Conceptual Plot Plan

Block Diagram

DESIGN AND ORIENTATION

During public comment and community 
meetings, it was clear that there was a strong 
desire for the new housing to blend with 
the surrounding community. Orientation 
toward streets, parks, and open space allow 
for neighborly design and a walkable commu-
nity. Simple, well-designed facades allow for 
visual interest while also meeting the goals of 
a project that is affordable and sustainable in 
providing high quality, low-income housing 
for some of the most vulnerable population of 
the community.

SITE SUMMARY

 • Acres: 12.07

 • Zoning Designation: R4-PD with Multi-Family 
Overlay

 • Permitted Maximum Density: 580 Units (30 
units/ac with 60% density bonus (30-4.23, k, 2, 
[a])

 • Permitted Maximum Height: 5 stories or 60 feet 
(30-4.23, k, 3, [b])

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

Units Square Footage Parking Estimated Open Space

Block Supportive 
Housing

Family Senior Management/ 
Community Space

Off-Street Public Semi-Public

A 90 — 51 2,900 53 0.21 ac 0.05 ac

B — — 54 1,340 29 0.02 ac

C — 85 141 7,025 141 0.27 ac 0.17 ac

D — 159 — 4,770 131 0.10 ac 0.40 ac

Subtotal 90 244 246 354 0.58 ac 0.64 ac

Total 580 Units 16,035 SF 354 Spaces 1.22 ac

PSH Parking Requirement: 0.25 total off-street spaces
Family Parking Requirement: Minimum 0.8 space/unit off-street spaces
Senior Parking Requirement: 0.5 space/unit off-street spaces
Above Moderate Housing: 1 space/unit off-street spaces

A

B
C

D

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 15 

Subarea Height Limits, Setback & 

Guidelines

Singleton Avenue

Be
tt

e 
St

re
et

Mosley Avenue

La
ke

hu
rs

t D
riv

e

SUBAREA LIMITS AND SETBACK GUIDELINES

Guideline Subareas

A
Permanent Supportive 
Housing and Senior 
Housing

B
Senior Housing

C
Senior and Family 
Housing

D
Family Housing

Height Limit Facing Singleton Ave N/A N/A 60' 60'

Height Limit Facing Mosley Ave. 60' N/A 60' 60'

Height Limit Facing Bette Street* N/A N/A 35' 35'

Height Limit Facing Internal Streets or Paseos 60' 60' 60' 60'

Minimum Setback to Porches and Terraces from 

Streets
5' 5' 5' 5'

Minimum Setback to Porches and Terraces from 

Open Space
0' 0' 0' 0'

Minimum Setback to Building face 10' 10' 10' 10'

Minimum Space Between buildings 20' 20' 20' 20'

*Height limitation extents 20' from the ROW line of Bette Street

A

B C

D

5-STORY

4-STORY

3-STORY

2-STORY

1-STORYSubarea Diagram

Page 51

Page 51 of 110



NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 16 

Summary of Housing Types

THE HOUSING TYPES IN NORTH HOUSING

Since 1940, the Housing Authority has served 
the Alameda community by providing housing 
for households with very low, low, and mod-
erate-incomes. A requirement of the North 
Housing land transfer is that the Housing 
Authority develop 90-units of permanent sup-
portive housing which will be the first project 
the Housing Authority undertakes.

Beyond this, it is the Housing Authority’s 
plan to build out the remainder of the site 
with mixed-income affordable housing. The 
Development Plan shows a sample mix of 
senior and family housing, though the exact 
unit types will largely be based upon avail-
able funding. Parking ratios are provided as a 
standard of what will be constructed for each 
type of housing. The numbers of each type 
of unit shown are to provide an idea of what 
will be built and to show that the units and 
all associated parking and open space can be 
provided on-site. 

Permanent Supportive Housing 
Designed for those who have spent time living 
unsheltered, these buildings typically contain 
additional spaces for case management and 
social services aimed at supporting residents 
in permanent housing. Units are smaller, typ-
ically made up of studio and 1-bedroom units. 
Parking needs for housing for the formerly 
homeless are very low and the Housing Au-
thority proposes a ratio of 0.25 spaces per unit.

Services for these residents will be provided 
by development partners, Alameda Point

Collaborative (APC) and Building Futures. 
Building Futures will provide primary social 

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

Supportive Housing Senior Family

Building A B C D E F G H I J

Studio, 1 bath/unit 45 — — — — — — — —

1 Bedroom, 1 bath/unit 44 51 54 35 54 50 27 27 25 11

2 Bedroom, 1 bath/unit 1 — — — 2 — 42 13 13 23

3 Bedroom, 1.5 bath/unit — — — — — — 16 6 27 14

Total Units 90 51 54 35 56 50 85 46 65 48

A

B

C D

E

F

G

I

J

H

PERMANENT SUPPORTIVE HOUSING SENIOR HOUSING FAMILY HOUSING

Singleton Avenue

Be
tt

e 
St

re
et

Mosley Avenue

La
ke

hu
rs

t D
riv

e

services to residents and make external 
service connections for residents. APC will 
provide job training and workforce readiness 
programs to residents.

Senior Housing
Age-restricted senior housing is designed to 
support aging in place to address the changing 
health and mobility needs of senior citizens. 
This includes universal design features 
throughout, including accessible route of 
travel, installation of grab bars in bathrooms, 
and wide maneuver- able doorways. Units are 
typically studio and 1-bedroom units. Park-
ing needs for an aging population are low as 
residents who drive are often limited by both 
physical ability and fixed incomes. The Hous-
ing Authority proposes a ratio of 0.5 spaces 
per unit.

Family Housing
These properties are designed to meet the 
needs of residents of all ages. Outdoor spaces 
contain play spaces for children of varying 
ages and indoor spaces include computer 
rooms for quiet study or resume writing, as an 
example. Units are a mixture of sizes, ranging 
from studio units to 3 bedroom units. Parking 
needs are higher for family properties and 
the Housing Authority proposes a ratio of 0.8 
spaces per unit.

It is the Housing Authority’s intention to fully 
develop the site as mixed income affordable 
housing. Developing this housing involves 
complicated financing and lengthy timelines. 
This reality is consistent with the City Hous-
ing Element 2015-23’s first Major Housing 
Initiative, which names financial resources as 
a challenge to the City’s Affordable Housing 

Programs. As is stipulated in the Legally Bind-
ing Agreement between the Housing Author-
ity, its partners, and the City (acting as Reuse 
Authority), the Housing Authority maintains 
the right to sell a portion of the land to obtain 
funding in support of providing affordable 
housing.

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 17 

Automobile Parking

Singleton Avenue

Be
tt

e 
St

re
et

Mosley Avenue

La
ke

hu
rs

t D
riv

e

53

29 141

131

GENERAL GUIDELINES

All automobile parking for residential uses on 
the North Housing site will be accommodated 
on-site, when possible located on the interior 
or in the rear of blocks. The ratios for parking 
needs of the residents of the North Housing 
site are derived from the Housing Authority 
and its partners’ experience with similar resi-
dent profiles in the Bay Area.

Off-street resident parking will be provided at 
the following minimum ratios:

 • Permanent Supportive Housing: minimum 
ratio of 0.25 spaces/unit. 

 • Family Affordable Housing: minimum 
ratio of 0.8 spaces/unit. 

 • Senior Housing: minimum ratio of 0.5 
spaces/unit. 

 • Above Moderate Housing: minimum ratio 
of 1.0 spaces/unit. 

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM

Units Square Footage Parking

Block Supportive 
Housing

Family Senior Management/ 
Community Space

Off-Street

A 90 — 51 2,900 53

B — — 54 1,340 29

C — 85 141 7,025 141

D — 159 — 4,770 131

Subtotal 90 244 246 354

Total 580 Units 16,035 SF 354 Spaces

PSH Parking Requirement: 0.25 total off-street spaces
Family Parking Requirement: Minimum 0.8 space/unit off-street spaces
Senior Parking Requirement: 0.5 space/unit off-street spaces
Above Moderate Housing: 1 space/unit off-street spaces

Page 52

Page 52 of 110



NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 18 

Conceptual Architectural Styles

The Breakers at Bayport, Alameda, CA

Jack Capon Villa, Alameda, CA

Jack Capon Villa, Alameda, CA

The Breakers at Bayport, Alameda, CA

Jack Capon Villa, Alameda, CA 

Ke
ith

-B
ak

er

Lincoln Oaks, Fremont, CA

SA
H

A

NORTH HOUSING DEVELOPMENT PLAN / ALAMEDA, CALIFORNIA / JULY 2019 19 

Preliminary Development Schedule

Block A Development

90 Unit Permanent Supportive Housing

Completion Anticipated Fall 2021

Block A & Block B Development

Completion Anticipated Summer 2023

Block C Phase 1

Completion Anticipated Winter 2025

Block C Phase 2

Completion Anticipated Winter 2026

Block D Phase 1

Completion Anticipated Winter 2027

Block D Phase 2

Completion Anticipated Winter 2028

Singleton Avenue

Be
tt

e 
St

re
et

Mosley Avenue

La
ke

hu
rs

t D
riv

e
h

La
ke

hu
r

k
h

kk
st

 D
riv

e

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

PHASE 3

PHASE 4

PHASE 5 PHASE 6

Page 53

Page 53 of 110



Page 54

Page 54 of 110



Page 55

Page 55 of 110



Page 56

Page 56 of 110



Page 57

Page 57 of 110



8/
8/

20
19

 9
:5

2 
A

M

 M
T

D
 A

ct
u

al
 M

T
D

 B
u

d
ge

t
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 %
 V

ar
 P

T
D

 A
ct

u
al

 P
T

D
 B

u
d

ge
t

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 %

 V
ar

70
00

00
0

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
70

20
00

0
T

E
N

A
N

T
 R

E
V

E
N

U
E

70
20

11
0

V
ac

an
cy

 L
os

s
0.

00
-6

8,
78

1.
55

68
,7

81
.5

5
10

0.
00

0.
00

-8
25

,3
78

.6
0

82
5,

37
8.

60
10

0.
00

70
20

13
0

W
rit

e 
O

ff
0.

00
-8

,1
51

.0
3

8,
15

1.
03

10
0.

00
0.

00
-9

7,
81

2.
36

97
,8

12
.3

6
10

0.
00

70
30

00
0

Te
na

nt
 R

en
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

28
6,

62
1.

68
33

7,
52

8.
42

-5
0,

90
6.

74
-1

5.
08

3,
69

4,
64

1.
16

4,
05

0,
34

1.
04

-3
55

,6
99

.8
8

-8
.7

8
70

30
03

0
M

ain
te

na
nc

e 
Ch

ar
ge

s
52

2.
00

1,
19

1.
67

-6
69

.6
7

-5
6.

20
23

,0
28

.4
3

14
,3

00
.0

4
8,

72
8.

39
61

.0
4

70
30

04
0

La
te

 C
ha

rg
es

50
0.

00
0.

00
50

0.
00

N
/A

5,
45

3.
00

0.
00

5,
45

3.
00

N
/A

70
30

05
0

M
isc

ell
an

eo
us

 O
th

er
 C

ha
rg

es
-3

7,
88

2.
00

0.
00

-3
7,

88
2.

00
N

/A
0.

95
0.

00
0.

95
N

/A
70

30
06

0
Ta

x 
In

cr
em

en
t P

ay
m

en
ts

 fr
om

 th
e 

Ci
ty

 o
f A

lam
ed

a
14

5,
28

0.
99

14
4,

44
5.

42
83

5.
57

0.
58

1,
74

0,
00

0.
00

1,
73

3,
34

5.
04

6,
65

4.
96

0.
38

70
30

10
0

Te
na

nt
 H

A
P 

Su
bs

id
y

47
8,

75
7.

60
59

3,
11

7.
22

-1
14

,3
59

.6
2

-1
9.

28
6,

10
9,

18
8.

76
7,

11
7,

40
6.

64
-1

,0
08

,2
17

.8
8

-1
4.

17
70

30
11

0
V

ac
an

cy
 L

os
s

0.
00

-3
98

.1
7

39
8.

17
10

0.
00

-6
8,

64
4.

00
-4

,7
78

.0
4

-6
3,

86
5.

96
-1

,3
36

.6
6

70
30

30
0

Co
m

m
er

cia
l R

en
ts

2,
82

1.
00

2,
32

5.
89

49
5.

11
21

.2
9

30
,5

59
.7

7
27

,9
10

.6
8

2,
64

9.
09

9.
49

70
50

00
0

TO
TA

L 
TE

N
A

N
T 

RE
V

E
N

U
E

87
6,

62
1.

27
1,

00
1,

27
7.

87
-1

24
,6

56
.6

0
-1

2.
45

11
,5

34
,2

28
.0

7
12

,0
15

,3
34

.4
4

-4
81

,1
06

.3
7

-4
.0

0
70

60
00

0
F

E
D

E
R

A
L

 G
R

A
N

T
S

70
60

06
0

Sh
elt

er
 P

lu
s C

ar
e 

Re
ve

nu
e

17
,2

35
.9

8
31

,2
15

.2
5

-1
3,

97
9.

27
-4

4.
78

33
7,

21
3.

70
37

4,
58

3.
00

-3
7,

36
9.

30
-9

.9
8

70
69

00
0

TO
TA

L 
FE

D
E

RA
L 

G
RA

N
TS

17
,2

35
.9

8
31

,2
15

.2
5

-1
3,

97
9.

27
-4

4.
78

33
7,

21
3.

70
37

4,
58

3.
00

-3
7,

36
9.

30
-9

.9
8

71
00

00
0

O
T

H
E

R
 I

N
C

O
M

E
71

10
01

0
In

ve
st

m
en

t I
nc

om
e 

- U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

0.
00

63
3.

73
-6

33
.7

3
-1

00
.0

0
94

,5
86

.7
1

7,
60

4.
76

86
,9

81
.9

5
1,

14
3.

78
71

10
01

1
In

te
re

st
 In

co
m

e
79

,4
36

.8
6

5,
56

9.
13

73
,8

67
.7

3
1,

32
6.

38
26

4,
01

5.
73

66
,8

29
.5

6
19

7,
18

6.
17

29
5.

06
71

10
01

3
Co

up
on

/I
nt

er
es

t/
D

iv
id

en
d 

In
co

m
e

28
.1

3
40

.9
2

-1
2.

79
-3

1.
26

4.
90

49
1.

04
-4

86
.1

4
-9

9.
00

71
10

02
0

In
te

re
st

 o
n 

E
qu

ip
. R

es
er

ve
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
N

/A
15

,6
34

.5
1

0.
00

15
,6

34
.5

1
N

/A
71

10
06

0
In

te
re

st
 - 

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t R

es
er

ve
1,

53
3.

93
0.

00
1,

53
3.

93
N

/A
18

,7
50

.1
2

0.
00

18
,7

50
.1

2
N

/A
71

10
07

0
O

th
er

 - 
In

co
m

e
14

0,
90

9.
10

0.
00

14
0,

90
9.

10
N

/A
48

0,
54

8.
72

0.
00

48
0,

54
8.

72
N

/A
71

10
07

5
La

un
dr

y 
Co

m
m

iss
io

n
1,

89
2.

78
2,

55
7.

58
-6

64
.8

0
-2

5.
99

24
,5

94
.8

6
30

,6
71

.9
6

-6
,0

77
.1

0
-1

9.
81

71
10

08
2

La
nd

 F
ee

/G
ro

un
d 

Le
as

e
44

6.
99

89
4.

00
-4

47
.0

1
-5

0.
00

8,
78

7.
14

10
,7

28
.0

0
-1

,9
40

.8
6

-1
8.

09
71

10
09

0
O

th
er

 M
isc

ell
an

eo
us

 R
ev

en
ue

0.
00

32
,5

00
.0

0
-3

2,
50

0.
00

-1
00

.0
0

18
,2

00
.0

0
39

0,
00

0.
00

-3
71

,8
00

.0
0

-9
5.

33
71

10
09

2
Pr

of
es

sio
na

l S
er

vi
ce

 R
ev

en
ue

11
7,

19
4.

08
15

3,
28

0.
75

-3
6,

08
6.

67
-2

3.
54

1,
32

6,
98

9.
22

1,
83

9,
36

9.
00

-5
12

,3
79

.7
8

-2
7.

86
71

40
00

0
Fr

au
d 

Re
co

ve
ry

26
,8

06
.0

3
0.

00
26

,8
06

.0
3

N
/A

26
,8

06
.0

3
0.

00
26

,8
06

.0
3

N
/A

71
50

03
0

M
isc

ell
an

eo
us

 O
th

er
 R

ev
en

ue
50

4.
97

0.
00

50
4.

97
N

/A
1,

97
8.

51
0.

00
1,

97
8.

51
N

/A
71

50
07

0
A

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

Fe
e

39
6.

00
1,

09
4.

00
-6

98
.0

0
-6

3.
80

4,
24

9.
80

13
,1

28
.0

0
-8

,8
78

.2
0

-6
7.

63
71

59
00

0
TO

TA
L 

O
TH

E
R 

IN
CO

M
E

36
9,

14
8.

87
19

6,
57

0.
11

17
2,

57
8.

76
87

.8
0

2,
28

5,
14

6.
25

2,
35

8,
82

2.
32

-7
3,

67
6.

07
-3

.1
2

80
00

00
0

H
U

D
 G

R
A

N
T

80
10

00
0

H
U

D
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

G
ra

nt
s

2,
35

3,
91

3.
95

2,
54

0,
15

3.
16

-1
86

,2
39

.2
1

-7
.3

3
29

,8
36

,2
99

.5
1

30
,4

81
,8

37
.9

2
-6

45
,5

38
.4

1
-2

.1
2

80
20

00
0

A
dm

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
Fe

es
 fr

om
 H

U
D

14
0,

19
5.

00
13

5,
14

1.
68

5,
05

3.
32

3.
74

1,
68

9,
69

4.
00

1,
62

1,
70

0.
16

67
,9

93
.8

4
4.

19
80

20
11

0
PO

RT
-I

n 
A

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

Fe
es

1,
70

8.
32

0.
00

1,
70

8.
32

N
/A

29
,2

44
.2

7
0.

00
29

,2
44

.2
7

N
/A

80
30

00
0

A
dm

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
Fe

es
 P

aid
 (P

O
RT

-O
ut

s)
5,

82
1.

90
0.

00
-5

,8
21

.9
0

N
/A

69
,7

63
.7

0
0.

00
-6

9,
76

3.
70

N
/A

81
00

12
0

TO
TA

L 
H

U
D

 G
RA

N
T

2,
48

9,
99

5.
37

2,
67

5,
29

4.
84

-1
85

,2
99

.4
7

-6
.9

3
31

,4
85

,4
74

.0
8

32
,1

03
,5

38
.0

8
-6

18
,0

64
.0

0
-1

.9
3

89
99

00
0

TO
TA

L 
RE

V
E

N
U

E
3,

75
3,

00
1.

49
3,

90
4,

35
8.

07
-1

51
,3

56
.5

8
-3

.8
8

45
,6

42
,0

62
.1

0
46

,8
52

,2
77

.8
4

-1
,2

10
,2

15
.7

4
-2

.5
8

90
00

00
0

E
X

P
E

N
SE

S
90

00
90

0
O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
 E

X
P

E
N

SE
S

91
00

00
0

A
D

M
IN

IS
T

R
A

T
IV

E
91

10
01

0
A

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

Sa
lar

ies
28

0,
70

2.
16

36
8,

60
5.

62
87

,9
03

.4
6

23
.8

5
3,

41
4,

03
9.

99
4,

42
3,

26
7.

60
1,

00
9,

22
7.

61
22

.8
2

91
10

02
0

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 H

elp
 - 

 A
dm

in
ist

ra
tiv

e
57

,7
70

.0
9

21
,5

53
.0

8
-3

6,
21

7.
01

-1
68

.0
4

32
0,

92
7.

19
25

8,
63

6.
96

-6
2,

29
0.

23
-2

4.
08

91
20

00
0

A
ud

iti
ng

 F
ee

s
0.

00
3,

94
9.

90
3,

94
9.

90
10

0.
00

53
,8

54
.0

0
47

,3
98

.8
0

-6
,4

55
.2

0
-1

3.
62

91
30

00
0

O
ut

sid
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t F

ee
s

0.
00

3,
37

8.
67

3,
37

8.
67

10
0.

00
10

,0
62

.0
0

40
,5

44
.0

4
30

,4
82

.0
4

75
.1

8
91

50
01

0
A

dm
in

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
 - 

 M
ed

ica
l/

D
en

ta
l

51
,3

63
.4

3
71

,3
77

.7
7

20
,0

14
.3

4
28

.0
4

64
6,

89
0.

95
85

6,
53

2.
13

20
9,

64
1.

18
24

.4
8

91
50

02
0

A
dm

in
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

  -
  P

E
RS

/P
A

RS
38

,0
64

.2
5

31
,5

89
.2

8
-6

,4
74

.9
7

-2
0.

50
30

8,
02

4.
87

37
9,

07
2.

24
71

,0
47

.3
7

18
.7

4
91

50
03

0
A

dm
in

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
 - 

 F
IC

A
4,

06
1.

71
5,

37
8.

57
1,

31
6.

86
24

.4
8

50
,5

61
.1

1
64

,5
43

.7
3

13
,9

82
.6

2
21

.6
6

91
50

04
0

A
dm

in
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

  -
  S

U
I

67
0.

38
63

7.
41

-3
2.

97
-5

.1
7

15
,9

19
.1

9
13

,3
01

.4
0

-2
,6

17
.7

9
-1

9.
68

91
50

05
0

A
dm

in
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

  -
  E

A
P

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

N
/A

0.
88

0.
00

-0
.8

8
N

/A
91

50
06

0
A

dm
in

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
 - 

Li
fe

/L
TD

1,
99

1.
26

2,
49

2.
22

50
0.

96
20

.1
0

24
,6

82
.8

3
29

,9
06

.8
6

5,
22

4.
03

17
.4

7
91

50
08

0
E

m
pl

oy
er

 B
en

ef
its

 C
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

 - 
O

th
er

38
2.

60
0.

00
-3

82
.6

0
N

/A
38

2.
60

0.
00

-3
82

.6
0

N
/A

91
50

09
0

A
dm

in
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
it 

 - 
W

C
3,

56
6.

13
1,

97
7.

59
-1

,5
88

.5
4

-8
0.

33
33

,3
31

.5
6

23
,7

33
.0

3
-9

,5
98

.5
3

-4
0.

44
91

60
01

0
O

ffi
ce

 S
up

pl
ies

/E
qu

ip
m

en
t

8,
86

6.
07

6,
39

5.
33

-2
,4

70
.7

4
-3

8.
63

47
,0

41
.9

0
76

,7
43

.9
6

29
,7

02
.0

6
38

.7
0

91
60

03
0

D
ue

s &
 S

ub
sc

rip
tio

ns
 P

ub
lic

at
io

ns
15

7.
20

0.
00

-1
57

.2
0

N
/A

3,
37

5.
71

0.
00

-3
,3

75
.7

1
N

/A
91

60
04

0
Po

st
ag

e
4,

27
1.

66
4,

62
0.

70
34

9.
04

7.
55

17
,5

01
.4

5
55

,4
48

.4
0

37
,9

46
.9

5
68

.4
4

91
60

05
0

Te
lep

ho
ne

6,
11

5.
82

5,
25

1.
55

-8
64

.2
7

-1
6.

46
59

,7
48

.9
3

63
,0

18
.6

0
3,

26
9.

67
5.

19
91

60
06

0
Ba

nk
 C

ha
rg

es
 a

nd
 C

he
ck

 S
up

pl
ies

6,
71

0.
89

2,
67

3.
11

-4
,0

37
.7

8
-1

51
.0

5
36

,1
86

.9
5

32
,0

77
.3

2
-4

,1
09

.6
3

-1
2.

81
91

60
08

0
St

at
io

ne
ry

 E
nv

elo
pe

s a
nd

 B
us

in
es

s C
ar

ds
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
N

/A
31

9.
59

0.
00

-3
19

.5
9

N
/A

91
60

09
0

Fo
rm

s a
nd

 C
op

ies
/P

rin
tin

g
1,

58
2.

47
0.

00
-1

,5
82

.4
7

N
/A

25
,9

31
.9

4
0.

00
-2

5,
93

1.
94

N
/A

91
60

10
0

Cl
as

sif
ied

 A
ds

 a
nd

 P
ub

lic
 N

ot
ice

s/
ou

tre
ac

h 
m

at
er

ial
3,

52
3.

55
2,

54
2.

00
-9

81
.5

5
-3

8.
61

55
,5

39
.0

3
30

,5
04

.0
0

-2
5,

03
5.

03
-8

2.
07

91
60

11
0

Le
ga

l E
xp

en
se

61
,5

44
.8

8
18

,9
02

.0
1

-4
2,

64
2.

87
-2

25
.6

0
28

9,
07

5.
61

22
6,

82
4.

12
-6

2,
25

1.
49

-2
7.

44

B
u

d
ge

t 
C

om
p

ar
is

on
 (

w
it

h
 P

T
D

)
Pe

rio
d 

=
 Ju

l 2
01

8-
Ju

n 
20

19
Bo

ok
 =

 A
cc

ru
al

 P
ag

e 
1 

of
 4

Page 58

Page 58 of 110



8/
8/

20
19

 9
:5

2 
A

M

 M
T

D
 A

ct
u

al
 M

T
D

 B
u

d
ge

t
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 %
 V

ar
 P

T
D

 A
ct

u
al

 P
T

D
 B

u
d

ge
t

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 %

 V
ar

B
u

d
ge

t 
C

om
p

ar
is

on
 (

w
it

h
 P

T
D

)
Pe

rio
d 

=
 Ju

l 2
01

8-
Ju

n 
20

19
Bo

ok
 =

 A
cc

ru
al

91
60

11
1

Pa
yr

ol
l c

ha
rg

e
54

8.
71

67
1.

51
12

2.
80

18
.2

9
6,

47
6.

15
8,

05
8.

12
1,

58
1.

97
19

.6
3

91
60

11
2

Su
rv

ey
/T

itl
e 

Fe
e

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

N
/A

31
,6

73
.6

0
0.

00
-3

1,
67

3.
60

N
/A

91
60

11
3

O
ffi

ce
 R

en
t

15
,7

51
.7

1
10

,1
84

.3
3

-5
,5

67
.3

8
-5

4.
67

65
,6

30
.0

3
12

2,
21

1.
96

56
,5

81
.9

3
46

.3
0

91
60

11
4

A
dm

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
Su

pp
or

t
25

.0
0

0.
00

-2
5.

00
N

/A
31

.0
6

0.
00

-3
1.

06
N

/A
91

60
11

5
O

rg
an

iz
at

io
n 

Co
st

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

N
/A

4,
94

2.
00

0.
00

-4
,9

42
.0

0
N

/A
91

60
12

0
Tr

ain
in

g/
Co

nf
er

en
ce

s a
nd

 T
ra

ve
l

28
,0

09
.4

4
13

,5
22

.2
4

-1
4,

48
7.

20
-1

07
.1

4
10

4,
54

8.
17

16
2,

26
6.

88
57

,7
18

.7
1

35
.5

7
91

60
13

0
M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

ue
s a

nd
 F

ee
s

72
,5

00
.0

0
1,

05
8.

67
-7

1,
44

1.
33

-6
,7

48
.2

2
98

,2
14

.7
2

12
,7

04
.0

4
-8

5,
51

0.
68

-6
73

.1
0

91
60

13
1

Ta
xe

s &
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t F
ee

s
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
N

/A
30

0.
08

0.
00

-3
00

.0
8

N
/A

91
60

14
0

Co
lle

ct
io

n 
Lo

ss
-1

45
.6

7
0.

00
14

5.
67

N
/A

-5
00

.6
2

0.
00

50
0.

62
N

/A
91

60
16

0
Co

nt
ra

ct
s -

 A
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

Se
rv

ice
s

21
,5

33
.1

3
0.

00
-2

1,
53

3.
13

N
/A

29
,5

33
.1

3
0.

00
-2

9,
53

3.
13

N
/A

91
60

17
0

Co
nt

ra
ct

s -
 A

dm
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

Se
rv

ice
s/

Co
ns

ul
ta

nt
41

,6
20

.8
4

27
,1

54
.4

2
-1

4,
46

6.
42

-5
3.

27
31

0,
86

8.
56

32
5,

85
1.

96
14

,9
83

.4
0

4.
60

91
60

18
0

Co
nt

ra
ct

s -
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ice

 P
ro

vi
de

r -
 Y

ar
di

25
,9

90
.1

1
12

,5
79

.8
9

-1
3,

41
0.

22
-1

06
.6

0
13

5,
44

0.
35

15
0,

95
8.

68
15

,5
18

.3
3

10
.2

8
91

60
19

0
Co

nt
ra

ct
s -

 C
om

pu
te

r/
Te

lep
ho

ne
 M

ain
te

na
nc

e/
E

m
ail

26
,3

08
.9

4
10

,6
14

.1
2

-1
5,

69
4.

82
-1

47
.8

7
10

8,
86

9.
96

12
7,

36
9.

44
18

,4
99

.4
8

14
.5

2
91

60
21

0
Co

nt
ra

ct
s -

 H
ou

sin
g 

Pr
og

ra
m

 S
er

vi
ce

s
2,

43
1.

00
0.

00
-2

,4
31

.0
0

N
/A

3,
29

5.
00

0.
00

-3
,2

95
.0

0
N

/A
91

60
22

0
Co

nt
ra

ct
s -

 H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

Se
rv

ice
s

79
,6

14
.0

0
8,

41
9.

18
-7

1,
19

4.
82

-8
45

.6
3

21
4,

50
6.

10
10

1,
03

0.
16

-1
13

,4
75

.9
4

-1
12

.3
2

91
60

23
0

Co
nt

ra
ct

s -
 H

ou
sin

g 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Se
rv

ice
s

8,
27

2.
00

4,
58

0.
08

-3
,6

91
.9

2
-8

0.
61

74
,5

48
.6

4
54

,9
60

.9
6

-1
9,

58
7.

68
-3

5.
64

91
60

25
0

Co
nt

ra
ct

s -
 O

ffi
ce

 M
ac

hi
ne

 M
ain

te
na

nc
e

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

N
/A

1,
49

6.
89

0.
00

-1
,4

96
.8

9
N

/A
91

60
26

0
Co

nt
ra

ct
s -

 O
ffi

ce
 M

ac
hi

ne
 L

ea
se

2,
87

5.
13

1,
56

8.
53

-1
,3

06
.6

0
-8

3.
30

20
,7

79
.3

3
18

,8
22

.3
6

-1
,9

56
.9

7
-1

0.
40

91
60

27
0

Co
nt

ra
ct

s -
 W

eb
 H

os
tin

g/
M

ain
te

na
nc

e/
W

eb
 A

ds
1,

34
0.

25
2,

05
1.

42
71

1.
17

34
.6

7
12

,3
84

.9
6

24
,6

17
.0

4
12

,2
32

.0
8

49
.6

9
91

60
51

0
A

ss
oc

iat
io

n 
D

ue
s

2,
76

7.
00

2,
53

5.
17

-2
31

.8
3

-9
.1

4
44

,7
35

.5
5

30
,4

22
.0

4
-1

4,
31

3.
51

-4
7.

05
91

69
00

0
TO

TA
L 

A
D

M
IN

IS
TR

A
TI

V
E

86
0,

78
6.

14
64

6,
26

4.
37

-2
14

,5
21

.7
7

-3
3.

19
6,

68
1,

17
1.

94
7,

76
0,

82
6.

83
1,

07
9,

65
4.

89
13

.9
1

92
00

00
0

T
E

N
A

N
T

/
SO

C
IA

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S/

P
O

L
IC

E
92

10
01

0
Te

na
nt

 S
er

vi
ce

s -
 S

ala
rie

s
7,

93
9.

35
17

,4
87

.1
0

9,
54

7.
75

54
.6

0
13

2,
15

8.
09

20
9,

84
5.

20
77

,6
87

.1
1

37
.0

2
92

10
03

0
Po

lic
e 

Se
rv

ice
s

17
,5

00
.0

0
17

,7
68

.1
0

26
8.

10
1.

51
21

2,
15

5.
56

21
3,

21
7.

20
1,

06
1.

64
0.

50
92

19
00

0
TO

TA
L 

TE
N

A
N

T/
SO

CI
A

L 
SE

RV
IC

E
S/

PO
LI

CE
25

,4
39

.3
5

35
,2

55
.2

0
9,

81
5.

85
27

.8
4

34
4,

31
3.

65
42

3,
06

2.
40

78
,7

48
.7

5
18

.6
1

92
19

99
0

R
E

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
92

20
00

0
Te

na
nt

-R
elo

ca
tio

n 
Co

st
s

1,
23

2.
70

2,
81

8.
64

1,
58

5.
94

56
.2

7
83

,4
30

.4
5

33
,8

23
.6

8
-4

9,
60

6.
77

-1
46

.6
6

92
29

00
0

TO
TA

L 
RE

LO
CA

TI
O

N
1,

23
2.

70
2,

81
8.

64
1,

58
5.

94
56

.2
7

83
,4

30
.4

5
33

,8
23

.6
8

-4
9,

60
6.

77
-1

46
.6

6
92

30
00

5
T

E
N

A
N

T
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S 

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S 
A

N
D

 I
N

SU
R

A
N

C
E

92
30

01
0

Te
na

nt
 S

vc
s E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

 - 
M

ed
ica

l/
D

en
ta

l
5,

42
9.

13
4,

88
9.

61
-5

39
.5

2
-1

1.
03

10
5,

85
9.

03
58

,6
77

.9
7

-4
7,

18
1.

06
-8

0.
41

92
30

02
0

Te
na

nt
 S

vc
s E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

  -
  P

E
RS

/P
A

RS
98

6.
99

1,
57

8.
49

59
1.

50
37

.4
7

87
,4

62
.9

4
18

,9
41

.7
5

-6
8,

52
1.

19
-3

61
.7

5
92

30
03

0
Te

na
nt

 S
vc

s E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
 - 

FI
CA

11
4.

16
26

8.
12

15
3.

96
57

.4
2

1,
69

5.
05

3,
21

9.
98

1,
52

4.
93

47
.3

6
92

30
04

0
Te

na
nt

 S
vc

s E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
 - 

SU
I

3,
15

2.
21

17
.1

8
-3

,1
35

.0
3

-1
8,

24
8.

14
3,

61
9.

12
20

6.
77

-3
,4

12
.3

5
-1

,6
50

.3
1

92
30

05
0

Te
na

nt
 S

vc
s E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

  -
 L

ife
/L

TD
11

3.
22

0.
00

-1
13

.2
2

N
/A

52
5.

59
0.

00
-5

25
.5

9
N

/A
92

30
08

0
Te

na
nt

 S
vc

s E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
  -

 O
th

er
3,

06
4.

23
0.

00
-3

,0
64

.2
3

N
/A

3,
06

4.
23

0.
00

-3
,0

64
.2

3
N

/A
92

30
09

0
Te

na
nt

 S
vc

s E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

it 
- W

C
94

.0
8

16
3.

58
69

.5
0

42
.4

9
1,

22
1.

49
1,

96
2.

60
74

1.
11

37
.7

6
92

39
00

0
TO

TA
L 

TE
N

A
N

T 
SE

RV
IC

E
S 

E
M

PL
O

Y
E

E
 B

E
N

E
FI

TS
 A

N
D

 IN
SU

RA
N

CE
12

,9
54

.0
2

6,
91

6.
98

-6
,0

37
.0

4
-8

7.
28

20
3,

44
7.

45
83

,0
09

.0
7

-1
20

,4
38

.3
8

-1
45

.0
9

92
40

00
5

T
E

N
A

N
T

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
92

40
02

0
Te

na
nt

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
 - 

 C
on

tra
ct

s a
nd

 O
/S

 S
er

vi
ce

s
42

,0
78

.2
0

27
,0

80
.6

8
-1

4,
99

7.
52

-5
5.

38
26

9,
30

7.
69

32
4,

96
8.

16
55

,6
60

.4
7

17
.1

3
92

40
03

0
Te

na
nt

/S
oc

ial
 S

er
vi

ce
s -

  R
es

id
en

t P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
N

/A
1,

31
0.

93
0.

00
-1

,3
10

.9
3

N
/A

92
40

04
0

Te
na

nt
/S

oc
ial

 S
ev

ice
s -

  O
th

er
 P

ro
gr

am
s

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

N
/A

-1
23

.5
1

0.
00

12
3.

51
N

/A
92

49
00

0
TO

TA
L 

TE
N

A
N

T 
SE

RV
IC

E
S

42
,0

78
.2

0
27

,0
80

.6
8

-1
4,

99
7.

52
-5

5.
38

27
0,

49
5.

11
32

4,
96

8.
16

54
,4

73
.0

5
16

.7
6

93
00

00
0

U
TI

LI
TI

E
S

93
10

00
0

W
at

er
40

,2
84

.5
0

21
,5

51
.6

8
-1

8,
73

2.
82

-8
6.

92
26

9,
30

0.
59

25
8,

62
0.

16
-1

0,
68

0.
43

-4
.1

3
93

20
00

0
E

lec
tri

cit
y

17
,5

22
.5

2
12

,0
85

.0
7

-5
,4

37
.4

5
-4

4.
99

13
1,

65
7.

01
14

5,
02

0.
84

13
,3

63
.8

3
9.

22
93

30
00

0
G

as
13

,5
70

.3
4

4,
82

9.
16

-8
,7

41
.1

8
-1

81
.0

1
75

,8
25

.6
2

57
,9

49
.9

2
-1

7,
87

5.
70

-3
0.

85
93

80
01

0
Se

w
er

31
,0

83
.6

6
27

,3
66

.6
6

-3
,7

17
.0

0
-1

3.
58

27
9,

20
1.

43
32

8,
39

9.
92

49
,1

98
.4

9
14

.9
8

93
80

02
0

G
ar

ba
ge

67
,6

54
.8

6
42

,6
90

.0
0

-2
4,

96
4.

86
-5

8.
48

43
1,

94
6.

40
51

2,
28

0.
00

80
,3

33
.6

0
15

.6
8

93
80

03
0

O
th

er
-4

32
.0

0
0.

00
43

2.
00

N
/A

-4
78

.0
0

0.
00

47
8.

00
N

/A
93

99
00

0
TO

TA
L 

U
TI

LI
TI

E
S

16
9,

68
3.

88
10

8,
52

2.
57

-6
1,

16
1.

31
-5

6.
36

1,
18

7,
45

3.
05

1,
30

2,
27

0.
84

11
4,

81
7.

79
8.

82
93

99
99

0
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
94

00
00

0
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 S

A
L

A
R

IE
S

94
10

01
0

M
ain

te
na

nc
e 

-  
Sa

lar
ies

42
,9

38
.1

4
60

,0
69

.5
7

17
,1

31
.4

3
28

.5
2

56
1,

15
6.

48
72

0,
83

4.
84

15
9,

67
8.

36
22

.1
5

94
19

00
0

TO
TA

L 
M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

CE
 S

A
LA

RI
E

S
42

,9
38

.1
4

60
,0

69
.5

7
17

,1
31

.4
3

28
.5

2
56

1,
15

6.
48

72
0,

83
4.

84
15

9,
67

8.
36

22
.1

5
94

20
00

5
M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
94

20
01

0
M

ain
te

na
nc

e 
M

at
er

ial
s

19
,2

11
.3

0
20

,8
12

.4
9

1,
60

1.
19

7.
69

99
,4

81
.5

7
24

9,
74

9.
88

15
0,

26
8.

31
60

.1
7

94
20

02
0

V
eh

icl
e 

- g
as

ol
in

e
1,

59
4.

07
0.

00
-1

,5
94

.0
7

N
/A

7,
61

5.
95

0.
00

-7
,6

15
.9

5
N

/A
94

20
03

0
Ja

ni
to

ria
ls 

Su
pp

lie
s

59
4.

44
0.

00
-5

94
.4

4
N

/A
2,

31
7.

05
0.

00
-2

,3
17

.0
5

N
/A

94
29

00
0

TO
TA

L 
M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

CE
 M

A
TE

RI
A

LS
21

,3
99

.8
1

20
,8

12
.4

9
-5

87
.3

2
-2

.8
2

10
9,

41
4.

57
24

9,
74

9.
88

14
0,

33
5.

31
56

.1
9

94
29

00
5

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

S
94

29
01

5
M

ain
te

na
nc

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
s -

 U
ni

t T
ur

na
ro

un
d

0.
00

24
,9

09
.6

0
24

,9
09

.6
0

10
0.

00
21

,4
61

.0
7

29
8,

91
5.

20
27

7,
45

4.
13

92
.8

2
94

29
04

0
M

ain
te

na
nc

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
s -

 C
yc

le 
Pa

in
tin

g
2,

52
5.

00
2,

66
8.

07
14

3.
07

5.
36

52
,5

25
.0

0
32

,0
16

.8
4

-2
0,

50
8.

16
-6

4.
05

 P
ag

e 
2 

of
 4

Page 59

Page 59 of 110



8/
8/

20
19

 9
:5

2 
A

M

 M
T

D
 A

ct
u

al
 M

T
D

 B
u

d
ge

t
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 %
 V

ar
 P

T
D

 A
ct

u
al

 P
T

D
 B

u
d

ge
t

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 %

 V
ar

B
u

d
ge

t 
C

om
p

ar
is

on
 (

w
it

h
 P

T
D

)
Pe

rio
d 

=
 Ju

l 2
01

8-
Ju

n 
20

19
Bo

ok
 =

 A
cc

ru
al

94
29

06
0

M
ain

te
na

nc
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

s -
 F

lo
or

 C
ov

er
in

g
20

,2
62

.2
8

6,
21

3.
95

-1
4,

04
8.

33
-2

26
.0

8
12

4,
32

3.
67

74
,5

67
.4

0
-4

9,
75

6.
27

-6
6.

73
94

29
10

0
M

ain
te

na
nc

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
s -

 S
er

vi
ce

s
5,

54
9.

68
13

,0
59

.7
3

7,
51

0.
05

57
.5

1
85

,7
48

.3
8

15
6,

71
6.

76
70

,9
68

.3
8

45
.2

8
94

30
01

0
M

ain
te

na
nc

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
s -

 P
ain

tin
g

2,
87

5.
00

2,
18

2.
08

-6
92

.9
2

-3
1.

76
22

,0
59

.6
6

26
,1

84
.9

6
4,

12
5.

30
15

.7
5

94
30

02
0

M
ain

te
na

nc
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

s -
 P

lu
m

bi
ng

1,
02

9.
00

2,
53

4.
33

1,
50

5.
33

59
.4

0
24

,6
01

.9
5

30
,4

11
.9

6
5,

81
0.

01
19

.1
0

94
30

03
0

M
ain

te
na

nc
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

s -
 L

an
ds

ca
pe

, P
oo

l, 
Po

nd
 M

ain
te

na
nc

e
17

,6
14

.6
2

11
,9

99
.0

1
-5

,6
15

.6
1

-4
6.

80
97

,2
40

.2
7

14
3,

98
8.

12
46

,7
47

.8
5

32
.4

7
94

30
04

0
M

ain
te

na
nc

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
s -

 H
V

A
C 

M
ain

te
na

nc
e

3,
84

7.
50

3,
22

5.
24

-6
22

.2
6

-1
9.

29
6,

60
7.

89
38

,7
02

.8
8

32
,0

94
.9

9
82

.9
3

94
30

05
0

M
ain

te
na

nc
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

s -
 H

az
ar

do
us

 S
ub

st
an

ce
s T

es
tin

g
2,

80
0.

00
0.

00
-2

,8
00

.0
0

N
/A

2,
80

0.
00

0.
00

-2
,8

00
.0

0
N

/A
94

30
06

0
M

ain
te

na
nc

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
s -

 E
lev

at
or

 M
ain

te
na

nc
e

5,
15

7.
04

3,
24

0.
50

-1
,9

16
.5

4
-5

9.
14

41
,1

70
.2

0
38

,8
86

.0
0

-2
,2

84
.2

0
-5

.8
7

94
30

07
0

M
ain

te
na

nc
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

s -
 E

xt
er

m
in

at
io

n
0.

00
4,

17
1.

51
4,

17
1.

51
10

0.
00

14
,1

90
.0

0
50

,0
58

.1
2

35
,8

68
.1

2
71

.6
5

94
30

08
0

M
ain

te
na

nc
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

s -
 E

lec
tri

ca
l M

ain
te

na
nc

e
97

1.
75

1,
97

9.
36

1,
00

7.
61

50
.9

1
8,

75
6.

85
23

,7
52

.3
2

14
,9

95
.4

7
63

.1
3

94
30

09
0

M
ain

te
na

nc
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

s -
 S

ec
ur

ity
 a

nd
 N

ur
se

 C
all

 S
ys

te
m

s
2,

71
7.

05
4,

92
0.

17
2,

20
3.

12
44

.7
8

82
,4

11
.3

7
59

,0
42

.0
4

-2
3,

36
9.

33
-3

9.
58

94
30

10
0

M
ain

te
na

nc
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

s -
 T

re
e 

Tr
im

m
in

g 
Se

rv
ice

s
0.

00
45

9.
88

45
9.

88
10

0.
00

34
,6

15
.0

0
5,

51
8.

56
-2

9,
09

6.
44

-5
27

.2
5

94
30

11
0

M
ain

te
na

nc
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

s -
 G

ut
te

r C
lea

ni
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s
0.

00
1,

31
3.

20
1,

31
3.

20
10

0.
00

7,
70

2.
00

15
,7

58
.4

0
8,

05
6.

40
51

.1
2

94
30

12
0

M
ain

te
na

nc
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

s -
 F

lo
or

in
g 

Re
pl

m
t/

Cl
ea

ni
ng

 S
rv

c
97

0.
00

68
7.

35
-2

82
.6

5
-4

1.
12

13
,5

82
.6

0
8,

24
8.

20
-5

,3
34

.4
0

-6
4.

67
94

30
13

0
M

ain
te

na
nc

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
s -

 O
th

er
89

5.
00

4,
57

3.
13

3,
67

8.
13

80
.4

3
24

,2
81

.3
3

54
,8

77
.5

6
30

,5
96

.2
3

55
.7

5
94

30
14

0
M

ain
te

na
nc

e 
Co

nt
ra

ct
s -

 V
eh

icl
e 

M
ain

te
na

nc
e

56
9.

03
46

8.
63

-1
00

.4
0

-2
1.

42
10

,9
77

.6
6

5,
62

3.
56

-5
,3

54
.1

0
-9

5.
21

94
30

15
0

M
ain

te
na

nc
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

s -
 Ja

ni
to

ria
l

14
,9

06
.0

0
9,

71
5.

74
-5

,1
90

.2
6

-5
3.

42
15

4,
94

6.
00

11
6,

58
8.

88
-3

8,
35

7.
12

-3
2.

90
94

39
00

0
TO

TA
L 

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
CE

 C
O

N
TR

A
CT

S
82

,6
88

.9
5

98
,3

21
.4

8
15

,6
32

.5
3

15
.9

0
83

0,
00

0.
90

1,
17

9,
85

7.
76

34
9,

85
6.

86
29

.6
5

94
50

00
5

M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 B
E

N
E

F
IT

S
94

50
01

0
M

ain
t E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

  -
  M

ed
ica

l/
D

en
ta

l
9,

89
1.

27
16

,6
24

.4
8

6,
73

3.
21

40
.5

0
12

8,
72

4.
70

19
9,

49
5.

87
70

,7
71

.1
7

35
.4

8
94

50
02

0
M

ain
t E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

 - 
 P

E
RS

/P
A

RS
3,

98
0.

58
7,

09
7.

82
3,

11
7.

24
43

.9
2

52
,3

51
.2

1
85

,1
74

.7
5

32
,8

23
.5

4
38

.5
4

94
50

03
0

M
ain

t E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
  -

   
FI

CA
62

6.
32

86
6.

72
24

0.
40

27
.7

4
7,

76
6.

02
10

,3
99

.9
7

2,
63

3.
95

25
.3

3
94

50
04

0
M

ain
t E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

  -
  S

U
I

10
3.

36
47

.9
2

-5
5.

44
-1

15
.6

9
2,

54
3.

28
57

5.
94

-1
,9

67
.3

4
-3

41
.5

9
94

50
05

0
M

ain
t E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
its

  -
 L

ife
/L

TD
35

4.
25

51
4.

04
15

9.
79

31
.0

9
4,

58
2.

28
6,

20
2.

98
1,

62
0.

70
26

.1
3

94
50

07
0

M
ain

t E
m

pl
oy

ee
 B

en
ef

its
  -

 U
ni

fo
rm

s/
Sh

oe
s

13
4.

94
35

2.
34

21
7.

40
61

.7
0

2,
24

5.
84

4,
23

0.
75

1,
98

4.
91

46
.9

2
94

50
09

1
M

ain
t E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
it 

- W
C

2,
71

9.
99

2,
53

4.
32

-1
85

.6
7

-7
.3

3
31

,2
40

.5
8

30
,4

10
.8

5
-8

29
.7

3
-2

.7
3

94
59

00
0

TO
TA

L 
M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

CE
 E

M
PL

O
Y

E
E

 B
E

N
E

FI
TS

17
,8

10
.7

1
28

,0
37

.6
4

10
,2

26
.9

3
36

.4
8

22
9,

45
3.

91
33

6,
49

1.
11

10
7,

03
7.

20
31

.8
1

94
99

00
0

TO
TA

L 
M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

CE
16

4,
83

7.
61

20
7,

24
1.

18
42

,4
03

.5
7

20
.4

6
1,

73
0,

02
5.

86
2,

48
6,

93
3.

59
75

6,
90

7.
73

30
.4

4
95

00
00

0
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 E
X

P
E

N
SE

S
95

00
10

0
In

te
re

st
 E

xp
en

se
81

,3
34

.1
7

93
,9

27
.2

5
12

,5
93

.0
8

13
.4

1
1,

06
9,

86
4.

22
1,

12
7,

12
7.

00
57

,2
62

.7
8

5.
08

95
00

16
0

M
or

tg
ag

e 
Fi

na
nc

ial
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

ha
rg

e
5,

08
4.

55
0.

00
-5

,0
84

.5
5

N
/A

65
,6

54
.1

5
0.

00
-6

5,
65

4.
15

N
/A

95
00

20
0

O
th

er
 E

xp
en

se
14

0,
00

0.
00

0.
00

-1
40

,0
00

.0
0

N
/A

41
5,

60
8.

78
0.

00
-4

15
,6

08
.7

8
N

/A
96

10
02

0
In

su
ra

nc
e 

- L
iab

ili
ty

7,
56

0.
89

6,
93

9.
33

-6
21

.5
6

-8
.9

6
45

,7
12

.8
7

83
,2

71
.9

6
37

,5
59

.0
9

45
.1

0
96

10
03

0
In

su
ra

nc
e 

- P
ro

pe
rty

11
,5

73
.6

3
9,

71
2.

35
-1

,8
61

.2
8

-1
9.

16
12

1,
30

8.
09

11
6,

54
8.

20
-4

,7
59

.8
9

-4
.0

8
96

10
04

0
In

su
ra

nc
e 

- V
eh

icl
e

83
5.

32
1,

24
7.

41
41

2.
09

33
.0

4
11

,6
15

.7
5

14
,9

68
.9

2
3,

35
3.

17
22

.4
0

96
10

05
0

In
su

ra
nc

e 
- E

ar
th

qu
ak

e
3.

59
0.

00
-3

.5
9

N
/A

3.
59

0.
00

-3
.5

9
N

/A
96

10
06

0
In

su
ra

nc
e 

- O
th

er
15

,6
65

.8
5

0.
00

-1
5,

66
5.

85
N

/A
26

,1
40

.2
4

0.
00

-2
6,

14
0.

24
N

/A
96

20
01

0
O

th
er

 G
en

er
al 

E
xp

en
se

s
86

0.
00

0.
00

-8
60

.0
0

N
/A

39
,7

34
.3

1
0.

00
-3

9,
73

4.
31

N
/A

96
98

00
0

TO
TA

L 
G

E
N

E
RA

L 
E

X
PE

N
SE

S
26

2,
91

8.
00

11
1,

82
6.

34
-1

51
,0

91
.6

6
-1

35
.1

1
1,

79
5,

64
2.

00
1,

34
1,

91
6.

08
-4

53
,7

25
.9

2
-3

3.
81

96
99

00
0

TO
TA

L 
O

PE
RA

TI
N

G
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
1,

53
9,

92
9.

90
1,

14
5,

92
5.

96
-3

94
,0

03
.9

4
-3

4.
38

12
,2

95
,9

79
.5

1
13

,7
56

,8
10

.6
5

1,
46

0,
83

1.
14

10
.6

2
97

00
00

0
M

O
D

 R
E

H
A

B
 A

N
D

 S
P

C
 E

X
P

E
N

SE
S

97
00

57
0

Re
nt

 to
 O

w
ne

rs
 - 

Be
ss

ie 
Co

lem
an

14
,5

05
.0

0
0.

00
-1

4,
50

5.
00

N
/A

18
2,

61
4.

00
0.

00
-1

82
,6

14
.0

0
N

/A
97

00
80

0
PO

RT
-I

n 
(A

/R
 B

ill
in

gs
)

-7
4,

21
1.

00
0.

00
74

,2
11

.0
0

N
/A

-8
48

,7
39

.0
0

0.
00

84
8,

73
9.

00
N

/A
97

00
90

0
TO

TA
L 

M
O

D
 R

E
H

A
B 

A
N

D
 S

PC
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
-5

9,
70

6.
00

0.
00

59
,7

06
.0

0
N

/A
-6

66
,1

25
.0

0
0.

00
66

6,
12

5.
00

N
/A

97
10

00
0

E
X

T
R

A
O

R
D

IN
A

R
Y

 E
X

P
E

N
SE

S
97

10
09

0
Pr

e-
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t C
os

t
0.

00
8,

33
3.

33
8,

33
3.

33
10

0.
00

3,
00

2.
64

99
,9

99
.9

6
96

,9
97

.3
2

97
.0

0
97

13
00

1
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 A

SS
IS

TA
N

CE
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
TS

 (V
O

U
CH

E
R)

97
19

00
0

TO
TA

L 
E

X
TR

A
O

RD
IN

A
RY

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S

0.
00

8,
33

3.
33

8,
33

3.
33

10
0.

00
3,

00
2.

64
99

,9
99

.9
6

96
,9

97
.3

2
97

.0
0

97
30

00
1

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 A
SS

IS
T

A
N

C
E

 P
A

Y
M

E
N

T
S 

(V
O

U
C

H
E

R
)

97
30

01
0

H
ou

sin
g 

A
ss

ist
an

ce
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 - 
La

nd
lo

rd
s

2,
54

7,
06

1.
00

2,
56

6,
27

4.
74

19
,2

13
.7

4
0.

75
30

,3
19

,1
84

.9
0

30
,7

95
,2

96
.8

8
47

6,
11

1.
98

1.
55

97
30

02
0

H
ou

sin
g 

A
ss

ist
an

ce
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 - 
 F

SS
6,

10
2.

00
0.

00
-6

,1
02

.0
0

N
/A

64
,1

35
.0

0
0.

00
-6

4,
13

5.
00

N
/A

97
30

07
0

U
til

ity
 A

llo
w

an
ce

 to
 T

en
an

ts
1,

74
9.

00
0.

00
-1

,7
49

.0
0

N
/A

28
,2

05
.0

0
0.

00
-2

8,
20

5.
00

N
/A

97
39

00
0

TO
TA

L 
H

O
U

SI
N

G
 A

SS
IS

TA
N

CE
 P

A
Y

M
E

N
TS

 (V
O

U
CH

E
R)

2,
55

4,
91

2.
00

2,
56

6,
27

4.
74

11
,3

62
.7

4
0.

44
30

,4
11

,5
24

.9
0

30
,7

95
,2

96
.8

8
38

3,
77

1.
98

1.
25

T
O

T
A

L
 E

X
P

E
N

SE
S 

B
E

F
O

R
E

 O
T

H
E

R
 E

X
P

E
N

SE
S

4,
03

5,
13

5.
90

3,
72

0,
53

4.
03

-3
14

,6
01

.8
7

-1
,1

82
.6

2
42

,0
44

,3
82

.0
5

44
,6

52
,1

07
.4

9
2,

60
7,

72
5.

44
6%

N
E

T
 I

N
C

O
M

E
 B

E
F

O
R

E
 O

T
H

E
R

 E
X

P
E

N
SE

S
-2

82
,1

34
.4

1
18

3,
82

4.
04

16
3,

24
5.

29
11

2.
61

3,
59

7,
68

0.
05

2,
20

0,
17

0.
35

-1
,3

97
,5

09
.7

0
-6

4%

97
39

50
0

O
T

H
E

R
 E

X
P

E
N

SE
S

97
40

00
0

D
ep

re
cia

tio
n 

E
xp

en
se

12
7,

99
7.

37
0.

00
-1

27
,9

97
.3

7
N

/A
1,

56
8,

09
5.

65
0.

00
-1

,5
68

,0
95

.6
5

N
/A

97
60

00
0

Ca
pi

ta
l O

ut
lay

s
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
N

/A
-3

,0
67

.2
9

0.
00

3,
06

7.
29

N
/A

97
65

00
0

D
on

at
io

ns
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
N

/A
2,

55
0.

00
0.

00
-2

,5
50

.0
0

N
/A

 P
ag

e 
3 

of
 4

Page 60

Page 60 of 110



8/
8/

20
19

 9
:5

2 
A

M

 M
T

D
 A

ct
u

al
 M

T
D

 B
u

d
ge

t
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

 %
 V

ar
 P

T
D

 A
ct

u
al

 P
T

D
 B

u
d

ge
t

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 %

 V
ar

B
u

d
ge

t 
C

om
p

ar
is

on
 (

w
it

h
 P

T
D

)
Pe

rio
d 

=
 Ju

l 2
01

8-
Ju

n 
20

19
Bo

ok
 =

 A
cc

ru
al

98
59

99
9

TO
TA

L 
O

TH
E

R 
E

X
PE

N
SE

S
12

7,
99

7.
37

0.
00

-1
27

,9
97

.3
7

N
/A

1,
56

7,
57

8.
36

0.
00

-1
,5

67
,5

78
.3

6
N

/A
99

96
00

0
TO

TA
L 

E
X

PE
N

SE
S

4,
16

3,
13

3.
27

3,
72

0,
53

4.
03

-4
42

,5
99

.2
4

-1
1.

90
43

,6
11

,9
60

.4
1

44
,6

52
,1

07
.4

9
1,

04
0,

14
7.

08
2.

33
99

98
00

0
N

E
T 

IN
CO

M
E

-4
10

,1
31

.7
8

18
3,

82
4.

04
-5

93
,9

55
.8

2
-3

23
.1

1
2,

03
0,

10
1.

69
2,

20
0,

17
0.

35
-1

70
,0

68
.6

6
-7

.7
3

 P
ag

e 
4 

of
 4

Page 61

Page 61 of 110



8/8/2019 9:53 AM

Current Balance
1000000 ASSETS
1100000 CURRENT ASSETS
1101000 CASH
1110010 Cash - Unrestricted 5,086,870.67
1110012 Cash - Reserve for Building 78,450.83
1110014 Cash - Reserve for Equipment 2,152.00
1110018 Cash - Operating Checking with 3rd Party 809,678.64
1110019 Petty Cash with 3rd Party -4,500.19
1110020 Cash - Petty cash 250.00
1110021 Cash - Benefit Account 71,023.68
1110030 Cash - FSS 125,003.20
1110040 Cash - Replacement Reserve Bldg 126,415.00
1130030 Cash - Restricted Sec Dep 76,775.00
1140000 Cash - Tenant Security Deposits 500,833.59
1140050 Cash - Tenant Security Deposits with 3rd Party 39,440.00
1199000 TOTAL CASH 6,912,392.42
1200000 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
1240010 Accounts Receivable -  Government 384,731.10
1240050 HAP Rent Receivable 122,603.66
1240070 Accounts Receivable- HUD 30,325.10
1250010 Accounts Receivable - Other 451,680.01
1250050 Accounts Receivable - 3rd Party Management 21,117.00
1255000 Subsidy Suspense Receivable -36,232.84
1260000 Accounts Receivable - Tenant 587,898.89
1260050 Accounts Receivable - Tenant Rent with 3rd Party 4,681.89
1261000 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Dwelling Rent -61,830.05
1280000 Fraud Recovery 36,869.40
1281000 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud -36,144.20
1290000 Accrued Interest Receivable 26,954.99
1290010 Accrued Receivables 19,237.77
1299000 TOTAL ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 1,551,892.72
1300000 INVESTMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT NOTES
1310000 Investments(LAIF)- Unrestricted 9,660,882.69
1320010 Investments - Other 200.00
1320020 Investments(LAIF) (Restricted) - FSS Escrow -327.20
1320030 Investments(LAIF)- Building Reserve 1,349,520.57
1320040 Investments(LAIF) - Equipment Reserve 270,652.04
1320201 Investment Reserved for IP-LAIF 419,973.11
1350010 Investment(LAIF)-Restricted (Jack Capon Villa Trust) 1,356.83
1350031 Investments - CAMP 8,233,972.03
1350100 Mortgage Receivable 26,213,098.04
1350103 Mortgage Receivable-Jack Capon L. P. 135,468.03
1350106 Loan Receivable - ICD 15,329,430.00
1350107 Loan Receivable-RCD/Stargell/Tri Pointe 2,000,000.00
1350109 Loan Receivable - Section 8 650,000.00

Balance Sheet
Period = Jun 2019
Book = Accrual

 Page 1 of 5

Page 62

Page 62 of 110



8/8/2019 9:53 AM

Current Balance

Balance Sheet
Period = Jun 2019
Book = Accrual

1360000 TOTAL INVESTEMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT NOTES 64,264,226.14
1400000 PREPAID EXPENSES
1420010 Prepaid Insurance - Property 16,990.90
1420020 Prepaid Insurance -  Liability 5,512.01
1420040 Prepaid Insurance -  Worker Comp 5,067.01
1420050 Prepaid - Other 159.97
1420051 Prepaid Rent 14,400.00
1420070 Escrow Deposits - Property -34,135.20
1420075 Escrow Dep. PNC Hedge Res. 62,273.35
1430000 Inventories 9,810.30
1430010 Replacement Reserve-NorthMarq Loan 491,715.37
1430020 Reserve for Replacement NorthMarq 507,852.45
1440099 TOTAL PREPAID EXPENSES 1,079,646.16
1440105 INTERPROGRAM
1440110 Interprogram (Due From) 962,654.84
1440111 Interprogram Due From Sherman St FACSA 13,073.00
1440112 Interprogram Due From Lincoln St FACSA 6,713.00
1440452 Interprogram Due From Stargell Commons -391,942.76
1440453 Interprogram Due From Island City Development - 4530 354.48
1440601 Interprogram Due From ABD -22,495.73
1440602 Interprogram Due From Rosefield Village - 4537 218.80
1440603 Interprogram Due From Parrot Gardens 15.11
1440604 Interprogram Due From Stanford House 4.67
1440605 Interprogram Due From Lincoln/Willow 15.12
1440606 Interprogram Due From Senior Condos 18.23
1440607 Interprogram Due From China Clipper 407.65
1440608 Interprogram Due From Regent Street Land 1,530.11
1440609 Interprogram Due From Santa Clara Land 60.19
1440610 Interprogram Due From Eagle Village 264.80
1440613 Interprogram Due From Shinsei Gardens 2,580.11
1440710 Interprogram Due From Section 8 Vouchers 451,104.46
1440730 Interprogram Due from PBV 15,605.00
1440740 Interprogram Due from HCV 97,971.63
1440770 Interprogram Due from FUP 1,106.00
1440780 Interprogram Due From F.S.S. 1,277.27
1440781 Interprogram Due From New FSS Grant 57,384.80
1440810 Interprogram Due From Independence Plaza 610.59
1440899 TOTAL INTERPROGRAM 1,198,531.37
1500000 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 75,006,688.81
1590000 LONG TERM ASSETS
1600000 FIXED ASSETS
1609999 LAND AND BUILDINGS
1610000 Land 58,219,778.63
1620030 Buildings 31,462,552.95
1620031 Buildings Improvements 2,146,759.76

 Page 2 of 5

Page 63

Page 63 of 110



8/8/2019 9:53 AM

Current Balance

Balance Sheet
Period = Jun 2019
Book = Accrual

1629000 TOTAL LAND AND BUILDINGS 91,829,091.34
1630040 Furniture and Equipment - Dwelling 355,074.81
1630041 Furniture and Equipment - Other 40,078.60
1650000 Leasehold Improvements 14,194,169.92
1660030 Accumulated Deprecation -28,381,978.92
1660060 Accumulated Depreciation - 3rd Party -532.61
1699000 TOTAL FIXED ASSETS 78,035,903.14
1800000 DEFERRED OUTFLOW
1800200 Deferred Outflow of Resources 2,509,532.01
1890000 TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOW 2,509,532.01
1900000 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
1900100 CIP - On Site Improvement -381.10
1900290 CIP - Organization - Legal 6,077.50
1900410 CIP - Environmental Testing & Reports 13,800.00
1900420 CIP - Permit & Fees (plan'g,build'g,public work,school dist) 4,085.80
1900430 CIP - Utilities Fees 607.60
1919999 TOTAL CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 24,189.80
1929999 TOTAL LONG TERM ASSETS 80,569,624.95
1999999 TOTAL ASSETS 155,576,313.76
3000000 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
3005000 LIABILITIES
3100000 CURRENT LIABILITIES
3100500 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
3120010 Accounts Payable<= 90 Days 250,172.30
3120011 Accounts Payable -CALPERS (employee portion) -12,332.95
3120012 Accounts Payable-Health Insurance (employee portion) 3,232.60
3120014 Accounts Payable-Garnishment (employee portion) -128.50
3120015 Accounts Payable-Vision Insurance (employee portion) -8.89
3120016 Accounts Payable-Life Insurance (employee portion) 100.86
3120018 Accounts Payable-PARS retirement (employee portion) -40.48
3120019 Accounts Payable-Flexible Spending Account(employee portion) -1,242.34
3120021 Employees Cobra 241.99
3120022 Accounts Payable-PERS 1959 Surv(Employee Portion) -4.65
3120023 Accounts Payable-FSA Transit Plan 2,390.58
3120024 Accounts Payable FSS 103,824.92
3120026 Accounts Payable FSS Interest 20.67
3120029 Accounts Payable - 3rd Party Management Company 6,237.22
3120030 Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable 1,391.46
3120040 Accrued Compensated Absences -  Current Portion 133,278.71
3120045 Accrued Vacation Payable - 3rd Party Management 2,548.21
3120070 Accrued Payables 17,080.20
3120075 Accrued Accounts Payable - 3rd Party Management 37,809.00
3330100 Tenants- Rents Payable 9,900.00
3339000 TOTAL ACCOUNT PAYABLE 554,470.91
3400000 SECURITY DEPOSITS HELD

 Page 3 of 5

Page 64

Page 64 of 110



8/8/2019 9:53 AM

Current Balance

Balance Sheet
Period = Jun 2019
Book = Accrual

3410010 Tenant Security Deposits 547,906.42
3410015 Tenant Security Deposits - held with 3rd Party Management 37,190.00
3410020 Tenant Security Deposits - Pets 1,300.00
3410030 Tenant Security Deposits - Gate Opener 50.00
3410040 Tenant Security Deposits - Satellite Dish/Antenna 1,700.00
3410060 Tenant Security Deposits - Pooled Interest 63,760.13
3410999 Security Deposit Refund 9,938.73
3419000 TOTAL SECURITY DEPOSITS HELD 661,845.28
3419900 OTHER LIABILITIES
3420000 Prepay Tenant Rent 86,231.37
3421000 Prepay Tenant Rent - 3rd Party Management 12,189.50
3425000 Unearned Revenue -432.00
3426000 Prepaid Ground Lease Rent 3,410,000.00
3430000 Current Portion of Long Term Debt -  Capital Projects 854,886.33
3449000 TOTAL OTHER LIABILITIES 4,362,875.20
3470000 INTERPROGRAM
3470050 Interprogram (Due to) 943,963.39
3470110 Interprogram Due To General Fund 178,146.12
3470601 Interprogram Due To Anne B Diament Plaza 21,429.00
3470710 Interprogram Due To Section 8 Vouchers 104,256.35
3471000 Due To/Due From Suspense Account 67,384.87
3480000 TOTAL INTERPROGRAM 1,315,179.73
3499000 TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,894,371.12
3500000 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
3510100 Mortgage Loan Payable 36,061,435.59
3510103 Mortgage Loan Payable- Alameda County 26,250.00
3510130 Interest Payable - City of Alameda Loan 1,018,089.26
3510140 Home Fund Loan #1 218,689.20
3510150 Housing Community Dev. Loan 916,399.98
3510157 Loan Payable - Esperanza 650,000.00
3510158 Loan Payable - CDBG 575,000.00
3510160 Home Fund Loan #2 282,700.00
3540000 Accrued Compensated Absences -  Noncurrent 100,813.20
3570000 OPEB Liability 138,471.00
3580000 Pension Liability 2,127,040.01
3599000 TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 42,114,888.24
3999000 TOTAL LIABILITIES 49,009,259.36
4000000 Equity/Net Assets
4000001 EQUITY
4000100 DEFERRED INFLOW
4001000 Deferred Inflow of Resources 2,507,318.98
4900000 TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOW 2,507,318.98
4999999 CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
5010000 Net Investment in Capital Assets 8,938,655.40
5080060 Donations 36,197,725.00

 Page 4 of 5

Page 65

Page 65 of 110



8/8/2019 9:53 AM

Current Balance

Balance Sheet
Period = Jun 2019
Book = Accrual

5090000 Unrestricted 36,382,768.43
5120000 Unrestricted 21,936,304.06
5120010 Net Restricted Assets 604,282.53
5950000 TOTAL CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 104,059,735.42
5999900 TOTAL EQUITY 106,567,054.40
6000000 TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 155,576,313.76

 Page 5 of 5

Page 66

Page 66 of 110



Page 67

Page 67 of 110



Page 68

Page 68 of 110



Page 69

Page 69 of 110



Page 70

Page 70 of 110



Page 71

Page 71 of 110



 

PART SEVEN: WORK HOURS AND PAY 

TIMEKEEPING REQUIREMENTS 

An employee’s accurately-recorded time card is one of the best ways to ensure the employee receives 
the correct amount of pay.  AHA utilizes an electronic timekeeping system, and all employees are 
required to submit an electronic time card every other week, on the Monday prior to payday.  Non-
exempt employees record actual hours worked and leave taken; non-exempt employees must report all 
hours worked and are strictly prohibited from performing any work “off the clock”.  Exempt employees 
report only leave taken, and report their leave usage in one-half or full daytwo-hour increments only.  
Any type of absence must be recorded on the time card and approved by the employee’s supervisor.   

In the event that a non-exempt employee does not record hours consistent with his/her scheduled work 
hours, the employee is required to use vacation and/or floating holiday leave to the extent necessary to 
bring their pay to an amount equivalent to their scheduled work hours.  

Employees are responsible for ensuring that their time cards are accurate, complete, and submitted on 
time.  Non-exempt employees should notify their supervisor no later than the end of the next business 
day if they fail to clock in or out, report leave used incorrectly, or have any other adjustment that needs 
to be made so that corrections can be completed in a timely manner.  Falsification of time cards or 
repeated inaccurate reporting of time will subject the employee to discipline, up to and including 
immediate termination.   

 

Page 72

Page 72 of 110



 

 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA 

 

Resolution No.________ 
 

ADOPT REVISED TIMEKEEPING REQUIREMENTS POLICY 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority Board of Commissioners adopted the AHA 
Personnel Policies April 12, 2012; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority Risk Retention Pool (HARRP) provided a 
model for the personnel policies; and 
 

WHEREAS, Liebert Cassidy Whitmore completed a thorough review of the AHA 
Personnel Policies and certified legal compliance at both the state and federal levels on 
November 4, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, Liebert Cassidy Whitmore completed a thorough review of the 

proposed revisions to the AHA Personnel Policies dated 12.21.2016 and has certified 
legal compliance of the policies at the state and federal levels; 

 
WHEREAS, The Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of 

Alameda adopted the revised Employee Policies and Procedures Handbook re. 
12.21.2016, eff. 1.8.2017; 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda hereby approves and adopts the revised 
Timekeeping Requirements policy effective 9.1.2019 for inclusion in the Employee 
Policies and Procedures Handbook rev. 12.21.2016, eff. 1.8.2017.  

 
 
   
ATTEST:   
   
 
    
Vanessa M. Cooper  Art Kurrasch, Chair 
Executive Director / Secretary  Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
Adopted:    
 
 

 
 
 

Page 73

Page 73 of 110



Page 74

Page 74 of 110



Page 75

Page 75 of 110



Page 76

Page 76 of 110



Page 77

Page 77 of 110



Page 78

Page 78 of 110



Ex
hi

bi
t 1

Po
si

tio
nT

itl
e

Sa
la

ry
 

R
an

ge
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

D
at

e
St

ep
 1

St
ep

 2
St

ep
 3

St
ep

 4
St

ep
 5

H
ou

si
ng

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
8

7/
1/

20
19

4,
39

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

4,
61

8
$ 

   
   

  
4,

84
9

$ 
   

   
  

5,
09

1
$ 

   
   

 
5,

34
5

$ 
   

   
   

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
12

7/
1/

20
19

4,
84

9
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
09

1
$ 

   
   

  
5,

34
5

$ 
   

   
  

5,
61

3
$ 

   
   

 
5,

89
4

$ 
   

   
   

H
ou

si
ng

 S
pe

ci
al

is
t I

14
7/

1/
20

19
5,

09
1

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

34
5

$ 
   

   
  

5,
61

3
$ 

   
   

  
5,

89
4

$ 
   

   
 

6,
18

8
$ 

   
   

   
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 T

ec
hn

ic
ia

n 
I**

**
14

7/
1/

20
19

5,
09

1
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
34

5
$ 

   
   

  
5,

61
3

$ 
   

   
  

5,
89

4
$ 

   
   

 
6,

18
8

$ 
   

   
   

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t 

15
7/

1/
20

19
5,

21
9

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

47
9

$ 
   

   
  

5,
75

3
$ 

   
   

  
6,

04
1

$ 
   

   
 

6,
34

2
$ 

   
   

   
H

ou
si

ng
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t I
I

18
7/

1/
20

19
5,

61
3

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

89
4

$ 
   

   
  

6,
18

8
$ 

   
   

  
6,

49
7

$ 
   

   
 

6,
82

3
$ 

   
   

   
R

en
t S

ta
bi

liz
at

io
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

 S
pe

ci
al

is
t

18
7/

1/
20

19
5,

61
3

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

89
4

$ 
   

   
  

6,
18

8
$ 

   
   

  
6,

49
7

$ 
   

   
 

6,
82

3
$ 

   
   

   
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t
18

7/
1/

20
19

5,
61

3
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
89

4
$ 

   
   

  
6,

18
8

$ 
   

   
  

6,
49

7
$ 

   
   

 
6,

82
3

$ 
   

   
   

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 T
ec

hn
ic

ia
n 

II*
**

*
20

7/
1/

20
19

5,
89

4
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
18

8
$ 

   
   

  
6,

49
7

$ 
   

   
  

6,
82

3
$ 

   
   

 
7,

16
3

$ 
   

   
   

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
As

si
st

an
t

22
7/

1/
20

19
6,

18
8

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

49
7

$ 
   

   
  

6,
82

3
$ 

   
   

  
7,

16
3

$ 
   

   
 

7,
52

2
$ 

   
   

   
H

ou
si

ng
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t I
II

24
7/

1/
20

19
6,

49
7

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

82
3

$ 
   

   
  

7,
16

3
$ 

   
   

  
7,

52
2

$ 
   

   
 

7,
89

8
$ 

   
   

   
Pr

op
er

ty
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
up

er
vi

so
r

26
7/

1/
20

19
6,

82
3

$ 
   

   
   

 
7,

16
3

$ 
   

   
  

7,
52

2
$ 

   
   

  
7,

89
8

$ 
   

   
 

8,
29

3
$ 

   
   

   
H

ou
si

ng
 P

ro
gr

am
s 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
26

7/
1/

20
19

6,
82

3
$ 

   
   

   
 

7,
16

3
$ 

   
   

  
7,

52
2

$ 
   

   
  

7,
89

8
$ 

   
   

 
8,

29
3

$ 
   

   
   

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 S
up

er
vi

so
r

26
7/

1/
20

19
6,

82
3

$ 
   

   
   

 
7,

16
3

$ 
   

   
  

7,
52

2
$ 

   
   

  
7,

89
8

$ 
   

   
 

8,
29

3
$ 

   
   

   
Ac

co
un

tin
g 

O
ffi

ce
r

28
7/

1/
20

19
7,

16
3

$ 
   

   
   

 
7,

52
2

$ 
   

   
  

7,
89

8
$ 

   
   

  
8,

29
3

$ 
   

   
 

8,
70

7
$ 

   
   

   
M

an
ag

em
en

t A
na

ly
st

32
7/

1/
20

19
7,

89
8

$ 
   

   
   

 
8,

29
3

$ 
   

   
  

8,
70

7
$ 

   
   

  
9,

14
2

$ 
   

   
 

9,
59

9
$ 

   
   

   
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
er

33
7/

1/
20

19
8,

09
5

$ 
   

   
   

 
8,

50
0

$ 
   

   
  

8,
92

4
$ 

   
   

  
9,

37
1

$ 
   

   
 

9,
84

0
$ 

   
   

   
As

se
t M

an
ag

er
33

7/
1/

20
19

8,
09

5
$ 

   
   

   
 

8,
50

0
$ 

   
   

  
8,

92
4

$ 
   

   
  

9,
37

1
$ 

   
   

 
9,

84
0

$ 
   

   
   

C
on

tro
lle

r
36

7/
1/

20
19

8,
70

7
$ 

   
   

   
 

9,
14

2
$ 

   
   

  
9,

59
9

$ 
   

   
  

10
,0

80
$ 

   
  

10
,5

83
$ 

   
   

 
Se

ni
or

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

37
7/

1/
20

19
8,

92
4

$ 
   

   
   

 
9,

37
1

$ 
   

   
  

9,
84

0
$ 

   
   

  
10

,3
31

$ 
   

  
10

,8
48

$ 
   

   
 

Se
ni

or
 M

an
ag

em
en

t A
na

ly
st

37
7/

1/
20

19
8,

92
4

$ 
   

   
   

 
9,

37
1

$ 
   

   
  

9,
84

0
$ 

   
   

  
10

,3
31

$ 
   

  
10

,8
48

$ 
   

   
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f H

ou
si

ng
 P

ro
gr

am
s

50
7/

1/
20

19
12

,2
52

$ 
   

   
  

12
,8

65
$ 

   
   

13
,5

08
$ 

   
   

14
,1

83
$ 

   
  

14
,8

92
$ 

   
   

 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f P
ro

pe
rty

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
50

7/
1/

20
19

12
,2

52
$ 

   
   

  
12

,8
65

$ 
   

   
13

,5
08

$ 
   

   
14

,1
83

$ 
   

  
14

,8
92

$ 
   

   
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f R

en
t S

ta
bi

liz
at

io
n 

50
7/

1/
20

19
12

,2
52

$ 
   

   
  

12
,8

65
$ 

   
   

13
,5

08
$ 

   
   

14
,1

83
$ 

   
  

14
,8

92
$ 

   
   

 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f H
R

 a
nd

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
54

7/
1/

20
19

13
,5

08
$ 

   
   

  
14

,1
83

$ 
   

   
14

,8
92

$ 
   

   
15

,6
36

$ 
   

  
16

,4
18

$ 
   

   
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
54

7/
1/

20
19

13
,5

08
$ 

   
   

  
14

,1
83

$ 
   

   
14

,8
92

$ 
   

   
15

,6
36

$ 
   

  
16

,4
18

$ 
   

   
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
56

7/
1/

20
19

14
,1

83
$ 

   
   

  
14

,8
92

$ 
   

   
15

,6
36

$ 
   

   
16

,4
18

$ 
   

  
17

,2
39

$ 
   

   
 

D
ep

ut
y 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
60

7/
1/

20
19

15
,6

36
$ 

   
   

  
16

,4
18

$ 
   

   
17

,2
39

$ 
   

   
18

,1
02

$ 
   

  
19

,0
06

$ 
   

   
 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
**

N
/A

7/
1/

20
19

22
,2

70
$ 

   
   

  
23

,3
83

$ 
   

   
R

es
id

en
t M

an
ag

er
 II

**
*, 

**
**

N
/A

7/
1/

20
19

$ 
 2

8.
93

/h
ou

r
R

es
id

en
t M

an
ag

er
 *,

 **
*, 

**
**

N
/A

7/
1/

20
19

$ 
 1

3.
91

/h
ou

r
$1

8.
54

/h
ou

r
As

si
st

an
t R

es
id

en
t M

an
ag

er
**

*
N

/A
7/

1/
20

19
$ 

 1
3.

91
/h

ou
r

R
es

id
en

t C
us

to
di

an
**

*
N

/A
7/

1/
20

19
$ 

 1
3.

91
/h

ou
r

*T
w

o 
ra

te
s 

ar
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

as
si

gn
ed

 d
ut

ie
s

**
*R

es
id

en
t a

nd
 R

es
id

en
t C

us
to

di
an

 s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
pa

id
 a

 fl
at

 h
ou

rly
 ra

te
; n

o 
ra

ng
e 

is
 a

pp
lie

d
**

**
In

di
ca

te
s 

cl
as

si
fic

at
io

n 
w

ith
 4

0 
ho

ur
 w

or
k 

w
ee

k;
 o

th
er

 p
os

iti
on

s 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 3

7-
1/

2 
ho

ur
 w

or
k 

w
ee

k

**
Sa

la
ry

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 b

y 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 C

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
pe

r E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t A
gr

ee
m

en
t

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 A
U

TH
O

R
IT

Y 
O

F 
TH

E 
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

AL
AM

ED
A

PA
Y 

SC
H

ED
U

LE
 F

Y 
20

19
-2

02
0 

  e
ff.

 7
/1

/2
01

9 
  (

ba
se

d 
on

 3
%

 C
O

LA
)

M
O

N
TH

LY
 S

AL
AR

Y 

Page 79

Page 79 of 110



Page 80

Page 80 of 110



Ex
hi

bi
t 3

Po
si

tio
nT

itl
e

Sa
la

ry
 

R
an

ge
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

D
at

e
St

ep
 1

St
ep

 2
St

ep
 3

St
ep

 4
St

ep
 5

H
ou

si
ng

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
8

7/
1/

20
19

4,
40

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

4,
62

7
$ 

   
   

  
4,

85
8

$ 
   

   
  

5,
10

1
$ 

   
   

 
5,

35
5

$ 
   

   
   

Pr
og

ra
m

 A
ss

is
ta

nt
12

7/
1/

20
19

4,
85

8
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
10

1
$ 

   
   

  
5,

35
5

$ 
   

   
  

5,
62

4
$ 

   
   

 
5,

90
5

$ 
   

   
   

H
ou

si
ng

 S
pe

ci
al

is
t I

14
7/

1/
20

19
5,

10
1

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

35
5

$ 
   

   
  

5,
62

4
$ 

   
   

  
5,

90
5

$ 
   

   
 

6,
20

0
$ 

   
   

   
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 T

ec
hn

ic
ia

n 
I**

**
14

7/
1/

20
19

5,
10

1
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
35

5
$ 

   
   

  
5,

62
4

$ 
   

   
  

5,
90

5
$ 

   
   

 
6,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t 

15
7/

1/
20

19
5,

22
9

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

49
0

$ 
   

   
  

5,
76

4
$ 

   
   

  
6,

05
2

$ 
   

   
 

6,
35

5
$ 

   
   

   
H

ou
si

ng
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t I
I

18
7/

1/
20

19
5,

62
4

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

90
5

$ 
   

   
  

6,
20

0
$ 

   
   

  
6,

50
9

$ 
   

   
 

6,
83

6
$ 

   
   

   
R

en
t S

ta
bi

liz
at

io
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

 S
pe

ci
al

is
t

18
7/

1/
20

19
5,

62
4

$ 
   

   
   

 
5,

90
5

$ 
   

   
  

6,
20

0
$ 

   
   

  
6,

50
9

$ 
   

   
 

6,
83

6
$ 

   
   

   
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t
18

7/
1/

20
19

5,
62

4
$ 

   
   

   
 

5,
90

5
$ 

   
   

  
6,

20
0

$ 
   

   
  

6,
50

9
$ 

   
   

 
6,

83
6

$ 
   

   
   

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 T
ec

hn
ic

ia
n 

II*
**

*
20

7/
1/

20
19

5,
90

5
$ 

   
   

   
 

6,
20

0
$ 

   
   

  
6,

50
9

$ 
   

   
  

6,
83

6
$ 

   
   

 
7,

17
7

$ 
   

   
   

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
As

si
st

an
t

22
7/

1/
20

19
6,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

50
9

$ 
   

   
  

6,
83

6
$ 

   
   

  
7,

17
7

$ 
   

   
 

7,
53

7
$ 

   
   

   
H

ou
si

ng
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t I
II

24
7/

1/
20

19
6,

50
9

$ 
   

   
   

 
6,

83
6

$ 
   

   
  

7,
17

7
$ 

   
   

  
7,

53
7

$ 
   

   
 

7,
91

3
$ 

   
   

   
Pr

op
er

ty
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
up

er
vi

so
r

26
7/

1/
20

19
6,

83
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
7,

17
7

$ 
   

   
  

7,
53

7
$ 

   
   

  
7,

91
3

$ 
   

   
 

8,
30

9
$ 

   
   

   
H

ou
si

ng
 P

ro
gr

am
s 

Su
pe

rv
is

or
26

7/
1/

20
19

6,
83

6
$ 

   
   

   
 

7,
17

7
$ 

   
   

  
7,

53
7

$ 
   

   
  

7,
91

3
$ 

   
   

 
8,

30
9

$ 
   

   
   

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 S
up

er
vi

so
r

26
7/

1/
20

19
6,

83
6

$ 
   

   
   

 
7,

17
7

$ 
   

   
  

7,
53

7
$ 

   
   

  
7,

91
3

$ 
   

   
 

8,
30

9
$ 

   
   

   
Ac

co
un

tin
g 

O
ffi

ce
r

28
7/

1/
20

19
7,

17
7

$ 
   

   
   

 
7,

53
7

$ 
   

   
  

7,
91

3
$ 

   
   

  
8,

30
9

$ 
   

   
 

8,
72

4
$ 

   
   

   
M

an
ag

em
en

t A
na

ly
st

32
7/

1/
20

19
7,

91
3

$ 
   

   
   

 
8,

30
9

$ 
   

   
  

8,
72

4
$ 

   
   

  
9,

16
0

$ 
   

   
 

9,
61

8
$ 

   
   

   
Pr

oj
ec

t M
an

ag
er

33
7/

1/
20

19
8,

11
1

$ 
   

   
   

 
8,

51
6

$ 
   

   
  

8,
94

2
$ 

   
   

  
9,

38
9

$ 
   

   
 

9,
85

9
$ 

   
   

   
As

se
t M

an
ag

er
33

7/
1/

20
19

8,
11

1
$ 

   
   

   
 

8,
51

6
$ 

   
   

  
8,

94
2

$ 
   

   
  

9,
38

9
$ 

   
   

 
9,

85
9

$ 
   

   
   

C
on

tro
lle

r
36

7/
1/

20
19

8,
72

4
$ 

   
   

   
 

9,
16

0
$ 

   
   

  
9,

61
8

$ 
   

   
  

10
,0

99
$ 

   
  

10
,6

04
$ 

   
   

 
Se

ni
or

 P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

37
7/

1/
20

19
8,

94
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
9,

38
9

$ 
   

   
  

9,
85

9
$ 

   
   

  
10

,3
52

$ 
   

  
10

,8
69

$ 
   

   
 

Se
ni

or
 M

an
ag

em
en

t A
na

ly
st

37
7/

1/
20

19
8,

94
2

$ 
   

   
   

 
9,

38
9

$ 
   

   
  

9,
85

9
$ 

   
   

  
10

,3
52

$ 
   

  
10

,8
69

$ 
   

   
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f H

ou
si

ng
 P

ro
gr

am
s

50
7/

1/
20

19
12

,2
76

$ 
   

   
  

12
,8

90
$ 

   
   

13
,5

34
$ 

   
   

14
,2

11
$ 

   
  

14
,9

21
$ 

   
   

 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f P
ro

pe
rty

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
50

7/
1/

20
19

12
,2

76
$ 

   
   

  
12

,8
90

$ 
   

   
13

,5
34

$ 
   

   
14

,2
11

$ 
   

  
14

,9
21

$ 
   

   
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f R

en
t S

ta
bi

liz
at

io
n 

50
7/

1/
20

19
12

,2
76

$ 
   

   
  

12
,8

90
$ 

   
   

13
,3

54
$ 

   
   

14
,2

11
$ 

   
  

14
,9

21
$ 

   
   

 
D

ire
ct

or
 o

f H
R

 a
nd

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
54

7/
1/

20
19

13
,5

34
$ 

   
   

  
14

,2
11

$ 
   

   
14

,9
21

$ 
   

   
15

,6
67

$ 
   

  
16

,4
50

$ 
   

   
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f H

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
54

7/
1/

20
19

13
,5

34
$ 

   
   

  
14

,2
11

$ 
   

   
14

,9
21

$ 
   

   
15

,6
67

$ 
   

  
16

,4
50

$ 
   

   
 

D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
56

7/
1/

20
19

14
,2

11
$ 

   
   

  
14

,9
21

$ 
   

   
15

,6
67

$ 
   

   
16

,4
50

$ 
   

  
17

,2
73

$ 
   

   
 

D
ep

ut
y 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
60

7/
1/

20
19

15
,6

67
$ 

   
   

  
16

,4
50

$ 
   

   
17

,2
73

$ 
   

   
18

,1
37

$ 
   

  
19

,0
43

$ 
   

   
 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
**

N
/A

7/
1/

20
19

22
,3

13
$ 

   
   

  
23

,4
28

$ 
   

   
R

es
id

en
t M

an
ag

er
 II

**
*, 

**
**

N
/A

7/
1/

20
19

$ 
28

.9
9/

ho
ur

R
es

id
en

t M
an

ag
er

 *,
 **

*, 
**

**
N

/A
7/

1/
20

19
$ 

13
.9

3/
ho

ur
$1

8.
58

/h
ou

r
As

si
st

an
t R

es
id

en
t M

an
ag

er
**

*
N

/A
7/

1/
20

19
$ 

13
.9

3/
ho

ur
R

es
id

en
t C

us
to

di
an

**
*

N
/A

7/
1/

20
19

$ 
13

.9
3/

ho
ur

*T
w

o 
ra

te
s 

ar
e 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le
 d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

as
si

gn
ed

 d
ut

ie
s

**
*R

es
id

en
t a

nd
 R

es
id

en
t C

us
to

di
an

 s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
pa

id
 a

 fl
at

 h
ou

rly
 ra

te
; n

o 
ra

ng
e 

is
 a

pp
lie

d
**

**
In

di
ca

te
s 

cl
as

si
fic

at
io

n 
w

ith
 4

0 
ho

ur
 w

or
k 

w
ee

k;
 o

th
er

 p
os

iti
on

s 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 3

7-
1/

2 
ho

ur
 w

or
k 

w
ee

k

**
Sa

la
ry

 a
ut

ho
riz

ed
 b

y 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 C

om
m

is
si

on
er

s 
pe

r E
m

pl
oy

m
en

t A
gr

ee
m

en
t

H
O

U
SI

N
G

 A
U

TH
O

R
IT

Y 
O

F 
TH

E 
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

AL
AM

ED
A

PA
Y 

SC
H

ED
U

LE
 F

Y 
20

19
-2

02
0 

  e
ff.

 7
/1

/2
01

9 
  (

ba
se

d 
on

 3
.2

%
 C

O
LA

)

M
O

N
TH

LY
 S

AL
AR

Y 

Page 81

Page 81 of 110



Page 82

Page 82 of 110



DRAFT 8/13/2019

Exhibit 5

Approved 
8/15/18 2019-2020 Proposal Year on Year

Department/Position Title

Approved 
FTE 2019 Proposed FTE 2020  Difference

Administration Department

Executive Director 1.00 1.00

Deputy Executive Director                                                 1.00 1.00

Director of HR and Operations 1.00 1.00

Executive Assistant 1.00 1.00

Senior Management Analyst 1.00 1.00

Management Analyst 2.00 3.00

Program Assistant 1.00 1.00

Sub-total 8.00 9.00 1.00
Finance Department

Director of Finance 1.00 1.00

Controller 1.00 1.00

Accounting Officer                                                              (See Note C) 1.00 1.00

Accounting Specialist                                                          2.00 2.00

Sub-total 5.00 5.00 0.00
Housing Programs Department

Director of Housing Programs 1.00 1.00

Housing Programs Supervisor 2.00 2.00

Housing Specialist III 1.00 1.00

Housing Specialist I & II                                                      (See Note B) 7.00 6.00

Housing Assistant 2.00 2.00

Sub-total 13.00 12.00 ‐1.00
Property Operations Department

Director of Property Operations                                           1.00 1.00

Property Management Supervisor                                       1.00 1.00

Project Manager                                                                 (See Note D) 0.00 1.00

Housing Specialist I/II                                                         (See Note B)                                          2.00 2.00

Maintenance Supervisor                                       1.00 1.00

Maintenance Technician I & II                                             (See Note B) 6.00 6.00

Maintenance Specialist                               1.00 1.00

Resident Manager I and II                                                 (See Notes A and  B) 4.13 4.25

Assistant Resident Manager                                               (See Note A) 0.50 0.25

Sub-total 16.63 17.50 0.87
 Housing and Community Development Department

Director of Housing and Community Development 1.00 1.00

Senior Project Manager 1.00 1.00

Project Manager 2.00 1.00

Asset Manager                                                               1.00 1.00

Management Analyst                                                                                           2.00 2.00

Program Assistant 1.00 1.00

Sub-total 8.00 7.00 ‐1.00

Director of Rent Stabilization 1.00 1.00

Management Analyst 1.00 1.00

Rental Stabilization Program Specialist 3.00 3.00

Program Assistant 1.00 1.00

Sub-total 6.00 6.00 0.00

Total 56.63 56.50 -0.13

Note A: Resident employees are contracted employees and are required to reside on-site at assigned Housing Authority 
complexes. Each Resident employee has an individual at will  employment contract. 

Note B: Positions at the  I and II levels are combined as a total count to allow for flexibility in staffing. 

Note C: Position may be renamed or filled at a lower level

Note D: This position was moved from HCD; half of salary is funded by City of Alameda

Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
Schedule of Authorized Positions

July 1, 2019

Rental Stabilization Department                                  

Page 83

Page 83 of 110



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA 
 

Resolution No. ____ 
 

TO REVISE THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION FOR 
HOUSING AUTHORITY EMPLOYEES’ HEALTH CARE BENEFIT  

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2020, AND  
THE EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTION FOR EMPLOYEES’ DENTAL/VISION BENEFIT  

EFFECTIVE JANUARY 1, 2020, AND 
PROVIDE A COST OF LIVING WAGE INCREASE EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2019, AND 

ADOPT THE CORRESPONDING PAY AND SALARY SCHEDULES  
 
 WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda desires to establish a 
benefits package for all employees that will attract and retain competent staff; and 

 WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Housing Authority to continue to provide the 
PEMHCA minimum contribution to employees and retirees for health care, with 
additional contributions for active employees contributed to the Agency Cafeteria Plan; 
and 

 WHEREAS, the Consumer Price Index for San Francisco Bay Area has 
increased by 3.2 percent;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that effective January 1, 2020, the 
Housing Authority will contribute a monthly dollar amount towards employees’ health 
care as follows: 
 
For all enrolled employees and annuitants: The 2020 PEMHCA minimum contribution of 
$139.00. 
 
In addition to the PEMHCA statutory minimum contribution, the Housing Authority will 
contribute the following amounts to the Agency Cafeteria Plan: 
 
General, management and confidential employees receive the following contributions, 
which are designated as health flex contributions, no portion of which may be taken in 
cash or directed to other non-health benefits: 

 
A flat amount based on the Employee+2 or more dependents level of coverage 
with the maximum Employer contribution to the Cafeteria Plan set at $1859.07 
 
Employees with proof of Alternative Group Health Coverage may opt out and 

receive cash back in the amount of $230 per month. Employees eligible for any cash-in-
lieu benefit, must provide the following in order to receive the cash-in-lieu:  (1) proof that 
the employee and all individuals for whom the employee intends to claim a personal 
exemption deduction (“tax family”), have or will have minimum essential coverage 
through another source (other than coverage in the individual market, whether or not 
obtained through Covered California) for the plan year to which the opt out arrangement 
applies (“opt out period”); and (2) the employee must sign an attestation that the 
employee and his/her tax family have or will have such minimum essential coverage for 
the opt out period.  An employee must provide the attestation every plan year at open 

Page 84

Page 84 of 110



enrollment or within 30 days after the start of the plan year.  The opt-out payment cannot 
be made and AHA will not in fact make payment if the employer knows that the 
employee or tax family member doesn’t have such alternative coverage, or if the 
conditions in this paragraph are not otherwise satisfied. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that effective January 1, 
2020, the Housing Authority will contribute a maximum monthly dollar amount to the 
Agency Cafeteria Plan for general, management and confidential employees of: 

A Flat amount of up to $250.44 regardless of dependent enrollment status for 
dental and/or vision insurance, or the actual 2020 dental premium for 
Employee+2 or more dependents coverage, whichever is less. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that effective July 1, 2019, 
all Housing Authority regular employees (positions) and contracted Resident employees 
(positions) will receive a: 3.0 percent wage increase (Option #1) OR a 3.2 percent wage 
increase (Option #2) as outlined on the attached pay and salary schedules. 
 

Board Approved Option:  _______#1 (3%)  or _______#2 (3.2%) 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that on August 21, 2019, 
the Housing Authority will adopt the revised Pay Schedule and Salary Schedule, both 
effective July 1, 2019 that corresponds to the COLA option selected above. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________  ______________________________ 
Vanessa M. Cooper   Art Kurrasch, Chair 
Executive Director / Secretary  Board of Commissioners 

Page 85

Page 85 of 110



 

 
To: Honorable Chair and Members of the Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Tonya Schuler-Cummins, Senior Management Analyst 
 
Date: August 21, 2019 
 
RE: Adopt the Resolution Certifying the Data Submitted for the Section 8 

Management Assessment Program for FY 2018-2019 and Authorize the 
Executive Director to Submit the Data, Resolution, and Supporting 
Documentation to HUD 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) has instituted the 
Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) to measure housing authorities’ 
performance in key program areas. 
 
The Housing Authority is required to submit an annual SEMAP certification online after 
the Board of Commissioners has adopted a resolution certifying that the data to be 
submitted is accurate.  The online certification must be submitted within 60 days of the 
end of its fiscal year.  The information contained in this report covers fiscal year July 1, 
2018 to June 30, 2019.  This report provides information on the Housing Authority’s 
performance, mirroring the online certification form, and provides assurance that there 
is no evidence of serious deficiencies.  HUD will use the information and other data to 
assess the Authority’s management capabilities and deficiencies, and to assign an 
overall performance rating for the Housing Authority’s Section 8 Housing Choice 
Voucher program. 
 
HUD will independently assess the Housing Authority’s performance using annual audit 
reports, monthly Multi-Family Tenant Characteristics System (MTCS) reports sent to 
HUD online, other certifications provided by the Housing Authority, and other sources.  
HUD will provide written notification of the Authority’s rating on each SEMAP indicator, 
the overall score, and the overall performance rating.  HUD rates all housing authorities 
according to the following systems: 
 
    90 percent or higher  = High Performer 
    61 to 89 percent  = Standard Performer 
    60 percent or lower  = Troubled Performer 
 
 

For Fiscal Year 2018-2019, the Housing Authority expects to receive a rating as a 

High Performer. 

Page 86

Page 86 of 110



Honorable Chair and  August 21, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 2 of 7 
 

                                                                                                           

 
Any indicator receiving a rating of zero is considered to be a SEMAP deficiency.  The 
Housing Authority must correct any such deficiency within 45 days.  If the deficiency is 
not corrected as required, the Housing Authority must submit a written corrective action 
plan to HUD within 30 days.     
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda has completed its annual SEMAP Self-
Certification for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018, and ending June 30, 2019, as 
required by 24 CFR 985.101.  Quarterly samples were completed for most indicators, 
but Indicator 3 was primarily performed in June and July by a contract auditor who 
reviewed documentation.  The quarterly work performed by the supervisory staff of the 
Housing Programs Department was reviewed by a contract auditor.  The Senior 
Management Analyst randomly selected the required sample files for each indicator 
and complied the audit data.  The utility allowance, payment standard, and lease-up 
indicators were completed by the Management Analyst team.  Data for indicators 9-12 
is based upon HUD’s PIC/Multi-Family Tenant Characteristic System as of June 30, 
2019. 
 
Indicator 1: Selection from the Waiting List 
 
This indicator addresses whether the Housing Authority has written policies in its 
Administrative Plan for selecting applicants from the waiting list and whether these 
policies are followed.  During the past fiscal year, the Housing Authority processed 57 
new admissions to the Housing Choice Voucher program (44 project-based, 3 mod 
rehab, 8 VASH, and 2 Housing Choice Voucher).  The reviewer randomly selected and 
reviewed seven files of applicants who were selected and admitted to determine that all 
preferences were verified, all were selected properly, and all were admitted or denied in 
accordance with the Administrative Plan.  Then the reviewer pulled a sample which 
included applicants who reached the top of the waiting list and were either admitted or 
not admitted (seven files reviewed) to determine if all preferences were correctly given 
and verified in accordance with the Administrative Plan. The Authority expects to 

receive all 15 rating points for this indicator. 
 
 
Indicator 2: Reasonable Rent 
 
This indicator measures whether the Housing Authority has developed and 
implemented a written procedure to determine and document that the rent to the owner 
for each unit is reasonable, based on current rents for comparable unassisted units:  (1) 
at the time of initial leasing; (2) when there is an increase in rent to the owner; and (3) 
at the Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) contract anniversary if there is a decrease of 
ten percent in the published fair market rent (FMR) in effect 60 days before the HAP 
contract anniversary.  During this audit period, there was not a ten percent decrease to 
any of the FMRs.   
 
 

Page 87

Page 87 of 110



Honorable Chair and  August 21, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 3 of 7 
 

                                                                                                           

 
To review and document rent reasonableness, staff uses the EZ-RRD program from the 
Nelrod Company, a national Housing Choice Voucher and Public Housing program 
consultant, which compiles and utilizes rent comparables on an ongoing basis, taking 
into account location, size, type, quality and age of the units and the amenities, housing 
services, maintenance and utilities provided by property owners.  For AHA-owned units 
under a Housing Assistance Payment contract, rent reasonableness must be 
established by an independent entity; AHA changed its contract this fiscal year from the 
Oakland Housing Authority to Nelrod for this service.   
 
The reviewer’s quality control sample of 26 files that needed a rent reasonableness 
review determined that required rent reasonableness documentation was present in 
100% of the files.  The Authority expects to receive 20 of the 20 possible points for 

this indicator. 
 
Indicator 3: Determination of Adjusted Income 
 
This indicator shows whether, at the time of admission and annual reexamination, the 
Housing Authority verifies and correctly determines adjusted annual income for each 
assisted family and uses the appropriate utility allowance for the unit in determining 
gross rent where the family is responsible for utilities under the lease. 
 
The reviewer randomly selected and reviewed a quality control sample of 26 files and 
determined that annual income, utility allowance and HAP amount were correctly 
calculated and verified in at least 80% of the sample.  The Housing Authority expects 

to receive 15 of 20 possible points for this indicator.       
 
Indicator 4: Utility Allowance Schedule 
 
This indicator measures whether the Housing Authority maintains an up-to-date utility 
allowance schedule.  The Housing Authority contracts annually with the Nelrod 
Company to review and update utility rate data.  The Nelrod Company prepared and 
provided updated data in March 2019 and as a result a new utility schedule was 
adopted for actions completed effective June 2, 2019.  The Housing Authority 

expects to receive all five points for this indicator. 
 
Indicator 5:  Housing Quality Control Inspections 
 
This indicator shows whether the Director of Housing Programs or other qualified 
person re-inspected a sample of units under contract during the fiscal year.  The 
Housing Authority was required to re-inspect a sample of 26 or more units.  Qualified 
staff from the Housing Authority conducted 33 quality control inspections.  The 

Housing Authority expects to receive all five points for this indicator. 
 
 
 
 

Page 88

Page 88 of 110



Honorable Chair and  August 21, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 4 of 7 
 

                                                                                                           

 
Indicator 6:  Housing Quality Standards Enforcement 
 
This indicator measures whether, for units that fail a Housing Quality Standards 
inspection, life-threatening deficiencies are corrected within 24 hours of inspection and 
all other cited deficiencies are corrected within 30 calendar days of the inspection, or, if 
not corrected, Housing Assistance payments (HAP) are abated no later than the first 
day of the month following the correction period in the case of property owner-caused 
deficiencies, or program assistance is terminated in the case of tenant-caused 
deficiencies or repeated no-shows.  Based on the number of failed inspections (763), a 
sample of 18 units was required for random selection and review.  The reviewer 
selected and reviewed 18 sample files from among failed HQS inspections.  In all 
samples deficiencies were corrected, HAP was abated, and/or clients were processed 
for program termination in accordance with HUD regulations.  The Housing Authority 

expects to receive all 10 points for this indicator. 

 
Indicator 7: Expanding Housing Opportunities   
 
This indicator, for PHAs within metropolitan FMR areas, shows whether the Housing 
Authority has adopted and implemented a written policy to encourage participation of 
owners of units located outside of areas of poverty or minority concentration.  The 
Housing Authority’s Administrative Plan includes such a policy.  Based on the most 
recent Census data, taken as a whole, Alameda can be characterized as an area of 
low-poverty and low minority concentration, and program participants are widely 
dispersed throughout the community. 
 
Housing Authority staff vigorously pursue ways to attract new property owners and to 
retain current property owners with units in all areas of the city to the Housing Choice 
Voucher program.  Staff is trained to handle phone calls from prospective new 
landlords, and interested property owners are sent a “New Landlord Packet” that 
includes information about the Housing Choice Voucher program and the Housing 
Authority.  The voucher issuance briefing session covers general information and 
property owner-provided unit listings for all areas of Alameda.  The Housing Authority 
continues to expand the number and range of units made available to eligible families 
through the Project Based Voucher program to provide additional opportunities for low 
income families receiving housing assistance and through the landlord incentive 
program.    
 
The reviewer reviewed support documentation for each section applicable under this 
indicator and affirmed that the documentation supports the Housing Authority’s 

affirmative certifications for this indicator.  The Housing Authority expects to receive 

all five points for this indicator. 
 
Indicator 8: Fair Market Rents and Payment Standards 
 
This indicator shows whether the PHA has adopted a payment standard schedule that 
establishes voucher payment standard amounts by unit size for each FMR area in the 
PHA jurisdiction and, if applicable, separate payment standard amounts by unit size for 

Page 89

Page 89 of 110



Honorable Chair and  August 21, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 5 of 7 
 

                                                                                                           

a PHA-designated part of an FMR area, which do not exceed 110% of the current 
applicable published FMRs and which are not less than 90% of the current applicable 
published FMRs (unless a higher or lower payment standard amount is approved by 
HUD).   
 
During this fiscal year, there were two different payment standards in effect at different 
times for the program.  From July 1, 2018 to June 1, 2019, the payment standards 
established November 2, 2017 were in effect.  Payment standards were changed 
effective June 2, 2019 to reflect the decreased FMRs from HUD.   
 
During the fiscal year being reviewed, all Payment Standards for the different unit sizes 
were within HUD’s acceptable range of 90 to 110 percent of the standard 40th percentile 
FMRs.  The Housing Authority expects to receive all five points for this indicator. 
 
[Ratings for the next five indicators will be determined by the Multi- 
Family Tenant Characteristic System (MTCS) based on regular reports submitted to 
HUD by the Housing Authority.] 
 
Indicator 9: Annual Reexaminations 
 
A HUD report available in the Multi-Family Tenant Characteristic System indicates that 
99 percent of annual re-certifications were reported on time.  The Housing Authority 

expects to receive all 10 points for this indicator. 
 
Indicator 10: Correct Tenant Rent Calculations 
 
This indicator examines whether the family’s share of rent to owner was calculated 

correctly.  MTCS shows that 100 percent of tenant rents were calculated correctly.  The 

Authority expects to receive all five points for this indicator. 
 
Indicator 11: Pre-contract HQS Inspections 
 
This indicator shows whether newly leased units passed Housing Quality Standards 
inspections prior to the execution date of the Housing Assistance Contract.  The MTCS 
report shows that 100 percent of units leased passed inspection prior to lease-up.  The 

Authority expects to receive all five points. 

 
Indicator 12: Annual HQS Inspections 
 
This indicator shows whether the Housing Authority inspected each unit under contract 
at least annually.  MTCS indicates that 100 percent of annual inspections were 
conducted within the required time frame.  The HUD field office did notify the Housing 
Authority that “annually” in this question is now expanded to include “biennially.”  The 
certification form has not yet been updated, but the regulation contained on the form 
has been updated.  The actual certification is “The PHA inspects each unit under 
contract at least annually.  (24 CFR 982.405(a)).”  The regulation at 24 CFR 982.405(a) 

Page 90

Page 90 of 110



Honorable Chair and  August 21, 2019 
Members of the Board of Commissioners Page 6 of 7 
 

                                                                                                           

only requires a biennial inspection.  The Housing Authority expects to receive all ten 

points for this indicator. 
 
Indicator 13: Lease-Up 
 
This indicator determines if the Housing Authority has executed Housing Assistance 
Contracts on behalf of eligible families for the number of units the Housing Authority 
has under budget for at least one year.  In order to receive the full 20 points for this 
indicator, the Housing Authority must achieve a lease-up rate of 98 percent and/or 
expend over 98% of its HAP budget authority under the ACC during the prior calendar 
year which ended on or before the fiscal year being reported. If the Housing Authority 
achieves 95% on either of the above benchmarks, the Housing Authority could obtain 
partial points of 15 points.  The Housing Authority expended 98.4% of its HAP budget 
under the ACC during the fiscal year.  The Housing Authority expects to receive 20 

of the 20 possible points for this indicator. 
 
Indicator 14: Family Self-Sufficiency 
 
This indicator applies only to housing authorities required to administer the mandatory 
Family Self-Sufficiency (FSS) program.  The Housing Authority has re-established an 
FSS program on a voluntary basis, and therefore this indicator does not apply to the 
Housing Authority.  
 
Indicator 15: Deconcentration Bonus 
 
This indicator does not currently apply to the Housing Authority as a requirement.  This 
is required starting with the second full fiscal year following initial use of payment 
standards based on the FMR set at the 50th percentile rent.  The Housing Authority only 
used payment standards above 100 percent of the 50th percentile from September 2, 
2015 to April 1, 2016.  This indicator is based upon the number of families with children 
living in or moving to low-poverty census tracts.  In order to claim these points, one of 
three conditions must be met.  The first condition is that at least half of Section 8 
families with children must live in a census tract identified as low-poverty (below 10 
percent of families are below the poverty level).  As of June 30, 2019, 100 percent of 
families with children lived in a census tract identified as low-poverty.  A review of the 
data available indicates that in Alameda, 16 of 16 census tracts are defined as “low-
poverty.”  This number is up from 11 the year before.  The Housing Authority expects 

to receive five bonus points. 

 
Total Points: 
 

For Fiscal Year 2018-2019, the Housing Authority expects to receive 135 of 135 
possible points (100%) for a rating of High Performer.   
 
 
 
 

Page 91

Page 91 of 110



Page 92

Page 92 of 110



 

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA 
 

Resolution No.________ 
 

CERTIFYING THE DATA SUBMITTED 
FOR THE SECTION 8 MANAGEMENT ASSESSMENT PROGRAM 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) will 
enable the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to measure 
public housing authority performance in key Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher 
program areas and to ensure program integrity and accountability by identifying 
management capabilities and deficiencies; and 
 

WHEREAS, SEMAP results may be utilized by the Board of Commissioners, to 
understand more comprehensively the Housing Authority’s program operations; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Housing Authority gathered and, hereby submits data to HUD to 

participate in the SEMAP process; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of 

Alameda has reviewed the data collected for submission to HUD for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2019, and has found the data to be an accurate reflection of the 
Housing Authority’s performance.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the 
Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, that it hereby certifies the accuracy of the data 
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, and directs that the data be submitted to HUD. 

 
 

 
   
ATTEST:   
   
 
       
Vanessa M. Cooper  Art Kurrasch, Chair 
Executive Director / Secretary  Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted:    
 
 

 
 

Page 93

Page 93 of 110



                          OMB Approval No. 2577-0215U.S. Department of HousingSection 8 Management Assessment
and Urban Development                                                 (exp. 02/29/2020)

Program (SEMAP) Office of Public and Indian Housing

Certification

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 12 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions,
searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  This agency may
not conduct or sponsor, and you are not required to respond to, a collection of information unless it displays a currently valid OMB control number.
This collection of information is required by 24 CFR sec 985.101 which requires a Public Housing Agency (PHA) administering a Section 8 tenant-based
assistance program to submit an annual SEMAP Certification within 60 days after the end of its fiscal year.  The information from the PHA concerns the
performance of the PHA and provides assurance that there is no evidence of seriously deficient performance.  HUD uses the information and other data
to assess PHA management capabilities and deficiencies, and to assign an overall performance rating to the PHA.  Responses are mandatory and the
information collected does not lend itself to confidentiality.

Instructions   Respond to this certification form using the PHA’s actual data for the fiscal year just ended.
PHA Name For PHA FY Ending (mm/dd/yyyy) Submission Date (mm/dd/yyyy)

Check here if the PHA expends less than $300,000 a year in Federal awards

Indicators 1 - 7 will not be rated if the PHA expends less than $300,000 a year in Federal awards and its Section 8 programs are not audited
for compliance with regulations by an independent auditor.  A PHA that expends less than $300,000 in Federal awards in a year must still
complete the certification for these indicators.
Performance Indicators

1. Selection from the Waiting List.  (24 CFR 982.54(d)(1) and 982.204(a))
(a)  The PHA has written policies in its administrative plan for selecting applicants from the waiting list.

PHA Response Yes  No

(b)  The PHA’s quality control samples of applicants reaching the top of the waiting list and of admissions show that at least 98% of the families in the
samples were selected from the waiting list for admission in accordance with the PHA’s policies and met the selection criteria that determined their places
on the waiting list and their order of selection.

PHA Response Yes  No

2. Reasonable Rent.  (24 CFR 982.4, 982.54(d)(15), 982.158(f)(7) and 982.507)
(a)  The PHA has and implements a reasonable written method to determine and document for each unit leased that the rent to owner is reasonable based
on current rents for comparable unassisted units (i) at the time of initial leasing, (ii) before any increase in the rent to owner, and (iii) at the HAP contract
anniversary if there is a 5 percent decrease in the published FMR in effect 60 days before the HAP contract anniversary.  The PHA’s method takes into
consideration the location, size, type, quality, and age of the program unit and of similar unassisted units,  and any amenities, housing services,
maintenance or utilities provided by the owners.

PHA Response Yes  No

(b)  The PHA’s quality control sample of tenant files for which a determination of reasonable rent was required shows that the PHA followed its written
method to determine reasonable rent and documented its determination that the rent to owner is reasonable as required for (check one):

PHA Response   At least 98% of units sampled   80 to 97% of units sampled   Less than 80% of units sampled

3. Determination of Adjusted Income.  (24 CFR part 5, subpart F and 24 CFR 982.516)
The PHA’s quality control sample of tenant files shows that at the time of admission and reexamination, the PHA properly obtained third party verification
of adjusted income or documented why third party verification was not available; used the verified information in determining adjusted income; properly
attributed allowances for expenses; and, where the family is responsible for utilities under the lease, the PHA used the appropriate utility allowances for
the unit leased in determining the gross rent for (check one):

PHA Response   At least 90% of files sampled   80 to 89% of files sampled   Less than 80% of files sampled

4. Utility Allowance Schedule.  (24 CFR 982.517)
The PHA maintains an up-to-date utility allowance schedule.  The PHA reviewed utility rate data that it obtained within the last 12 months, and adjusted
its utility allowance schedule if there has been a change of 10% or more in a utility rate since the last time the utility allowance schedule was revised.
PHA Response Yes  No

5. HQS Quality Control Inspections.  (24 CFR 982.405(b))
A PHA supervisor (or other qualified person) reinspected a sample of units during the PHA fiscal year, which met the minimum sample size required by
HUD (see 24 CFR 985.2), for quality control of HQS inspections.  The PHA supervisor’s reinspected sample was drawn from recently completed HQS
inspections and represents a cross section of neighborhoods and the work of a cross section of inspectors.

PHA Response Yes  No

6. HQS Enforcement.  (24 CFR 982.404)
The PHA’s quality control sample of case files with failed HQS inspections shows that, for all cases sampled, any cited life-threatening HQS deficiencies
were corrected within 24 hours from the inspection and, all other cited HQS deficiencies were corrected within no more than 30 calendar days from the
inspection or any PHA-approved extension, or, if HQS deficiencies were not corrected within the required time frame, the PHA stopped housing assistance
payments beginning no later than the first of the month following the correction period, or took prompt and vigorous action to enforce the family obligations
for (check one):
PHA Response   At least 98% of cases sampled   Less than 98% of cases sampled

form HUD-52648 (11/2013)
Previous edition is obsolete Page 1 of 4 ref. 24 CFR Part 985

Page 94

Page 94 of 110



7. Expanding Housing Opportunities.  (24 CFR 982.54(d)(5), 982.153(b)(3) and (b)(4), 982.301(a) and 983.301(b)(4) and (b)(12)).
Applies only to PHAs with jurisdiction in metropolitan FMR areas.

Check here if not applicable

(a)  The PHA has a written policy to encourage participation by owners of units outside areas of poverty or minority concentration which clearly delineates
areas in its jurisdiction that the PHA considers areas of poverty or minority concentration, and which includes actions the PHA will take to encourage
owner participation.
PHA Response Yes  No

(b)  The PHA has documentation that shows that it took actions indicated in its written policy to encourage participation by owners outside areas of poverty
and minority concentration.
PHA Response Yes  No

(c)  The PHA has prepared maps that show various areas, both within and neighboring its jurisdiction, with housing opportunities outside areas of poverty
and minority concentration; the PHA has assembled information about job opportunities, schools and services in these areas; and the PHA uses the maps
and related information when briefing voucher holders.
PHA Response Yes  No

(d)  The PHA’s information packet for voucher holders contains either a list of owners who are willing to lease, or properties available for lease, under
the voucher program, or a list of other organizations that will help families find units and the list includes properties or organizations that operate outside
areas of poverty or minority concentration.
PHA Response Yes  No

(e)  The PHA’s information packet includes an explanation of how portability works and includes a list of neighboring PHAs with the name, address and
telephone number of a portability contact person at each.
PHA Response Yes  No

(f)  The PHA has analyzed whether voucher holders have experienced difficulties in finding housing outside areas of poverty or minority concentration
and, where such difficulties were found, the PHA has considered whether it is appropriate to seek approval of exception payment standard amounts in
any part of its jurisdiction and has sought HUD approval when necessary.
PHA Response Yes  No

8. Payment Standards.  The PHA has adopted current payment standards for the voucher program by unit size for each FMR area in the PHA jurisdiction
and, if applicable, for each PHA-designated part of an FMR area, which do not exceed 110 percent of the current applicable FMR  and which are not
less than 90 percent of the current FMR (unless a lower percent is approved by HUD).  (24 CFR 982.503)

PHA Response Yes  No

Enter current FMRs and payment standards (PS)

0-BR FMR _________ 1-BR FMR _________ 2-BR FMR _________ 3-BR FMR ________ 4-BR FMR _________
PS ______________ PS ______________ PS ______________ PS ______________ PS ______________

If the PHA has jurisdiction in more than one FMR area, and/or if the PHA has established separate payment standards for a PHA-designated
part of an FMR area, attach similar FMR and payment standard comparisons for each FMR area and designated area.

9. Annual Reexaminations.  The PHA completes a reexamination for each participating family at least every 12 months.  (24 CFR 982.516)

PHA Response Yes  No

10. Correct Tenant Rent Calculations.  The PHA correctly calculates tenant rent in the rental certificate program and the family rent to owner in the rental
voucher program.  (24 CFR 982, Subpart K)

PHA Response Yes  No

11. Precontract HQS Inspections.  Each newly leased unit passed HQS inspection before the beginning date of the assisted lease and HAP contract.  (24 CFR
982.305)

PHA Response Yes  No

12. Annual HQS Inspections.  The PHA inspects each unit under contract at least annually.  (24 CFR 982.405(a))

PHA Response Yes  No

13. Lease-Up.  The PHA executes assistance contracts on behalf of eligible families for the number of units that has been under budget for at least one year.

PHA Response Yes  No

14a. Family Self-Sufficiency Enrollment.  The PHA has enrolled families in FSS as required.  (24 CFR 984.105)
Applies only to PHAs required to administer an FSS program .
Check here if not applicable

PHA Response

a. Number of mandatory FSS slots (Count units funded under the FY 1992 FSS incentive awards and in FY 1993 and later
through 10/20/1998.  Exclude units funded in connection with Section 8 and Section 23 project-based contract
terminations; public housing demolition, disposition and replacement; HUD multifamily property sales; prepaid or
terminated mortgages under section 236 or section 221(d)(3); and Section 8 renewal funding.  Subtract the number of
families that successfully completed their contracts on or after 10/21/1998.)

or, Number of mandatory FSS slots under HUD-approved exception

form HUD-52648 (8/2000)
Previous edition is obsolete Page 2 of 4 ref. 24 CFR Part 985

Page 95

Page 95 of 110



b. Number of FSS families currently enrolled

c. Portability:  If you are the initial PHA, enter the number of families currently enrolled in your FSS program, but who
have moved under portability and whose Section 8 assistance is administered by another PHA

Percent of FSS slots filled (b + c divided by a)

14b. Percent of FSS Participants with Escrow Account Balances.   The PHA has made progress in supporting family self-sufficiency as measured by the
percent of currently enrolled FSS families with escrow account balances.  (24 CFR 984.305)
Applies only to PHAs required to administer an FSS program .
Check here if not applicable

PHA Response Yes  No

Portability:  If you are the initial PHA, enter the number of families with FSS escrow accounts currently enrolled in your
FSS program, but who have moved under portability and whose Section 8 assistance is administered by another PHA

Deconcentration Bonus Indicator   (Optional and only for PHAs with jurisdiction in metropolitan FMR areas).

The PHA is submitting with this certification data which show that:
(1) Half or more of all Section 8 families with children assisted by the PHA in its principal operating area resided in low poverty census tracts at the end of the last

PHA FY;
(2) The percent of Section 8 mover families with children who moved to low poverty census tracts in the PHA’s principal operating area during the last PHA FY

is at least two percentage points higher than the percent of all Section 8 families with children who resided in low poverty census tracts at the end of the last
PHA FY;
or

(3) The percent of Section 8 mover families with children who moved to low poverty census tracts in the PHA’s principal operating area over the last two
PHA FYs is at least two percentage points higher than the percent of all Section 8 families with children who resided in low poverty census tracts at the
end of the second to last PHA FY.

PHA Response Yes  No             If yes, attach completed deconcentration bonus indicator addendum.

I hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the above responses under the Section 8 Management Assessment Program (SEMAP) are true and accurate
for the PHA fiscal year indicated above.  I also certify that, to my present knowledge, there is not evidence to indicate seriously deficient performance that casts
doubt on the PHA’s capacity to administer Section 8 rental assistance in accordance with Federal law and regulations.
Warning:  HUD will prosecute false claims and statements.  Conviction may result in criminal and/or civil penalties.  (18 U.S.C. 1001, 1010, 1012;   31 U.S.C. 3729, 3802)

Executive Director, signature Chairperson, Board of Commissioners, signature

___________________________________________________________ _________________________________________________________

Date (mm/dd/yyyy) ____________________________________________ Date (mm/dd/yyyy) _________________________________________

The PHA may include with its SEMAP certification any information bearing on the accuracy or completeness of the information used by the PHA in providing its
certification.

form HUD-52648 (11/2013)
Previous edition is obsolete Page 3 of 4 ref. 24 CFR Part 985

Page 96

Page 96 of 110



Page 4 of 4

.

SEMAP Certification - Addendum for Reporting Data for Deconcentration Bonus Indicator

Date (mm/dd/yyyy) ____________________________

PHA Name ______________________________________________________________________________________

Principal Operating Area of PHA _____________________________________________________________________
(The geographic entity for which the Census tabulates data)

Special Instructions for State or regional PHAs   Complete a copy of this addendum for each metropolitan area or portion of a metropolitan area  (i.e., principal
operating areas) where the PHA has assisted 20 or more Section 8 families with children in the last completed PHA FY.  HUD will rate the areas separately
and the separate ratings will then be weighted by the number of assisted families with children in each area and averaged to determine bonus points.

1990 Census Poverty Rate of Principal Operating Area __________________________________________________

Criteria to Obtain Deconcentration Indicator Bonus Points

To qualify for bonus points, a PHA must complete the requested information and answer yes for only one of the 3 criteria below.  However,
State and regional PHAs must always complete line 1) b for each metropolitan principal operating area.

1) __________ a. Number of Section 8 families with children assisted by the PHA in its principal operating area at the end of the last PHA
FY who live in low poverty census tracts.  A low poverty census tract is a tract with a poverty rate at or below the overall
poverty rate for the principal operating area of the PHA, or at or below 10% whichever is greater.

__________ b. Total Section 8 families with children assisted by the PHA in its principal operating area at the end of the last PHA FY.

__________ c. Percent of all Section 8 families with children residing in low poverty census tracts in the PHA’s principal operating area
at the end of the last PHA FY (line a divided by line b).

Is line c 50% or more? Yes  No

2) __________ a. Percent of all Section 8 families with children residing in low poverty census tracts in the PHA's principal operating area
at the end of the last completed PHA FY.

__________ b. Number of Section 8 families with children who moved to low poverty census tracts during the last completed PHA FY.

__________ c. Number of Section 8 families with children who moved during the last completed PHA FY.

__________ d. Percent of all Section 8 mover families with children who moved to low poverty census tracts during the last PHA fiscal
year (line b divided by line c).

Is line d at least two percentage points higher than line a? Yes  No

3) __________ a. Percent of all Section 8 families with children residing in low poverty census tracts in the PHA's principal operating area
at the end of the second to last completed PHA FY.

__________ b. Number of Section 8 families with children who moved to low poverty census tracts during the last two completed PHA FYs.

__________ c. Number of Section 8 families with children who moved during the last two completed PHA FYs.

__________ d. Percent of all Section 8 mover families with children who moved to low poverty census tracts over the last two completed
PHA FYs (line b divided by line c).

Is line d at least two percentage points higher than line a? Yes  No

If one of the 3 criteria above is met, the PHA may be eligible for 5 bonus points.

See instructions above concerning bonus points for State and regional PHAs.

form HUD-52648 (11/2013)
Previous edition is obsolete ref. 24 CFR Part 985

Page 97

Page 97 of 110



Page 98

Page 98 of 110



Page 99

Page 99 of 110



D
el M

onte W
arehouse M

aster Plan – Septem
ber 22, 2014 

24 

C
H

A
PT

E
R

 
3: 

 
G

eneral 
Site 

D
evelopm

ent 
R

equirem
ents and Standards for D

evelopm
ent of 

Specific Subareas of the D
el M

onte Site A
rea  

This chapter establishes the requirem
ents for im

provem
ents related to 

specific subareas of the D
el M

onte W
arehouse M

aster Plan, including: 
•

Land U
se

•
R

esidential D
ensity

•
N

on-R
esidential D

ensity/M
inim

um
s

•
R

esidential and N
on-R

esidential D
evelopm

ent Balance

•
A

ffordable H
ousing

•
Parking

•
Building D

esign

 S ubarea D
iagram 

ATTACHMENT A
Page 100

Page 100 of 110



D
el M

onte W
arehouse M

aster Plan – Septem
ber 22, 2014 

24 

C
H

A
PT

E
R

 
3: 

 
G

eneral 
Site 

D
evelopm

ent 
R

equirem
ents and Standards for D

evelopm
ent of 

Specific Subareas of the D
el M

onte Site A
rea  

This chapter establishes the requirem
ents for im

provem
ents related to 

specific subareas of the D
el M

onte W
arehouse M

aster Plan, including: 
•

Land U
se

•
R

esidential D
ensity

•
N

on-R
esidential D

ensity/M
inim

um
s

•
R

esidential and N
on-R

esidential D
evelopm

ent Balance

•
A

ffordable H
ousing

•
Parking

•
Building D

esign

 S ubarea D
iagram 

ATTACHMENT A
Page 101

Page 101 of 110

kmertz
Text Box
REMNANT PARCEL

kmertz
Pencil

kmertz
Pencil

kmertz
Pencil



A
TTA

C
H

M
EN

T B
Page 102

Page 102 of 110



Exhibit A-1 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
AND WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 

City of Alameda 
2263 Santa Clara Avenue 
Alameda, CA  94501 
Attention:  City Manager 

Copy to: 

Housing Authority of the City of Alameda 
701 Atlantic Avenue 
Alameda, CA 94501 
Attention:  Executive Director 

Recorded for the Benefit of 
The City of Alameda 
Pursuant to Government 
Code Section 27381 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY 

A.P.N. __________________________ 

QUITCLAIM DEED 

This Quitclaim Deed (this “Quitclaim Deed”)  is made this ___ day of _________, 2019, 
by and between the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, a public body, corporate and 
politic, hereinafter called the GRANTOR, and the City of Alameda, California, a Municipal 
Corporation, hereinafter called the GRANTEE. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Quitclaim Deed with Reservation of Covenants, 
Restrictions and Conditions, between GRANTOR, as grantee, and GRANTEE, as grantor, dated 
for reference purposes as of December 12, 2016 and recorded in the official record sof Alameda 
County on December 12, 2016 as document number 2016-322897 (the “City Deed”), 
GRANTEE granted to GRANTOR to certain “Property” described therein.  Capitalized terms 
not definede herein shall have the meanings given to them in the City Deed. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the City Deed, (a) the Property is required to be 
used and maintained exclusively for the Affordable Housing Project, and (b) the Property is 
subject to a right of reverter in favor of GRANTEE if the use of the Property does not comply 
with the City Deed. 

WHEREAS, GRANTOR and GRANTEE agree that the portion of the Property described 
in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorprated hereby (the “Excess Property”) is not used and 
maintained exclusively for the Affordable Housing Project. 

ATTACHMENT C Page 103

Page 103 of 110



 2 

WHEREAS, GRANTOR desires to transfer the Excess Property to GRANTEE pursuant 
to the terms hereof. 

NOW THEREFORE, GRANTOR, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby remise, release and forever quitclaim 
to GRANTEE, all of GRANTOR’S right, title and interest in and to the Excess Property, subject 
to all covenants, conditions, restrictions, easements, rights-of-way, reservations, rights, 
agreements, and encumbrances of record that pertain to the Excess Property, including, without 
limitation, that certain Easement Agreement made as of December 9, 2016, and recorded in the 
official record of Alameda County on December 12, 2016 as document number 2016322900. 

[SIGNATURES PAGES FOLLOW] 

  

Page 104

Page 104 of 110



 3 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the GRANTOR has executed this Quitclaim Deed as of the 
day first above written. 
 
GRANTOR: HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 

ALAMEDA, a public body, corporate and politic 
 
 

Dated: ___________, 2019  By:        
     Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director 

 
A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

State of California )  
County of _____________________ )  
 

On ____________________, before me, ____________________________, a Notary Public, 
personally appeared _______________________________, who proved to me on the basis of 
satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within 
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their 
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or 
the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature   
 

  

Page 105

Page 105 of 110



 4 

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 

This is to certify that the interest in real property conveyed by the deed or grant 
dated _____________, 2019 from the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, a political 
corporation and/or governmental agency, to the City of Alameda is hereby accepted by order of 
the City Council of the City of Alameda on _____________, 2019, (or by the undersigned 
officer or agent on behalf of the City of Alameda pursuant to authority conferred by resolution 
of the City Council of the City of Alameda adopted on _____________, 2019,) and the grantee 
consents to recordation thereof by its duly authorized officer. 

The GRANTEE hereby accepts this Quitclaim Deed and agrees to be bound by all 
of the agreements, covenants, conditions, restrictions and reservations contained herein. 

Date: _____________, 2019 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
By:      
 LISA MAXWELL 
 Assistant City Attorney 
 

THE CITY OF ALAMEDA 

 

By:      
 ERIC LEVITT 
 City Manager 

 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

State of California )  
County of _____________________ )  
 

On ____________________, before me, ____________________________, a Notary Public, 
personally appeared _______________________________, who proved to me on the basis of 
satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within 
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their 
authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or 
the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature   
 

Page 106

Page 106 of 110



Exhibit A 

EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description of Excess Property 

[Attached] 

Page 107

Page 107 of 110



Page 108

Page 108 of 110



Page 109

Page 109 of 110



Page 110

Page 110 of 110

vmondo
Typewritten Text


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	4-C - Exhibit 6 Reso-Amend Wage Health Increase 8.21.2019.pdf
	In addition to the PEMHCA statutory minimum contribution, the Housing Authority will contribute the following amounts to the Agency Cafeteria Plan:
	General, management and confidential employees receive the following contributions, which are designated as health flex contributions, no portion of which may be taken in cash or directed to other non-health benefits:

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	phaname: Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
	phaenddate: 06/30/2019
	submisdate: 08/22/2019
	checkhere: Off
	1a: Yes
	1c: Yes
	2a: Yes
	2c: 1
	3a: 2
	4a: Yes
	5a: Yes
	6a: Yes
	7a: Off
	7b: Yes
	7d: Yes
	7f: Yes
	7h: Yes
	7j: Yes
	7l: Yes
	8a: Yes
	8c: 1409
	8d: 1706
	8e: 2126
	8f: 2925
	8g: 3587
	8h: 1549
	8j: 1876
	8k: 2338
	8l: 3217
	8m: 3824
	9a: Yes
	10a: Yes
	11a: Yes
	12a: Yes
	13a: Yes
	14a1: Yes
	14a2: 
	14a3: 
	14ab: 
	14ac1: 
	14ad: 
	14b1: Yes
	14b2: Off
	14b4: 
	dbiy: Yes
	dirdate: 8/21/2019
	comdate: 8/21/2019
	pg4date: 8/21/2019
	pg4phaname: Housing Authority of the City of Alameda
	pg4poa: City of Alameda
	pg4povrate: 9.6
	pg41a: 587
	pg41b: 587
	pg41c: 100
	pg41yes: Yes
	pg42a: 
	pg42b: 
	pg4c: 
	pg4d: 
	pg42dyes: Off
	pg43a: 
	pg43b: 
	pg43c: 
	pg43d: 
	pg43dyes: Off


